Important

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Company Limited (the “Company”) confirmed
that the information in this 2005 interim report (the “Interim Report”)
does not contain any false information, misleading statements or material
omissions, and accept joint and several responsibility for the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the content of this Interim Report.

Mr. An Pindong and Mr. Wang Zhanying, both are executive Directors,
and Mr. Ko Poming, an independent non-executive Director, all were on
business trips and unable to attend the Board meeting (the “Meeting”)
held on 30th August 2005 for approving, among other matters, this
Interim Report. Mr. An Pindong and Mr. Wang Zhanying appointed Ms.
Ma Baiyu, the Chairman, while Mr. Ko Poming appointed Mr. Wang
Xiangfei, an independent non-executive Director, to vote on their behalf
respectively at the Meeting.

The financial statements in this Interim Report are prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in Hong Kong and
have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company but have
not been audited.

Ms. Ma Baiyu, the Chairman, Mr. Gu Qifeng, the financial controller and
Ms. Chen Yinxing, the manager of the accounting department of the
Company, have declared that they are responsible for the truthfulness
and completeness of the financial statements contained in this Interim
Report.
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I. Company Profile

Company name

Chinese name

REBERFERNDBRAT

Abbreviation of the Chinese name

BIZIRIR

English name
Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Abbreviation of the English name
TCEPC

Information about the Company’s listed shares (the
“Shares”)

Place for listing of A Shares
Shanghai Stock Exchange (“SSE”)

Short form for A Shares
Tianjin Capital

Stock code for A Shares
600874

Place for listing of A Share convertible bonds (the “A Share
Convertible Bonds”) of the Company
SSE

Short form for A Share Convertible Bonds
Tianjin Convertible Bonds

A Share Convertible Bonds code
110874

Place for listing of H Shares
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)

Short form for H Shares
Tianjin Capital

Stock code for H Shares
1065
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Company registered address

Registered address

No. 45 Guizhou Road

Heping District

Tianjin

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

Postal code
300381

Website
http://www.tjcep.com

E-mail address
tjcep@tjcep.com

Legal representative of the Company (I
Ms. Ma Baiyu

Secretary to the Board and Company Secretary in
Hong Kong

Secretary to the Board
Ms. Fu Yana

Correspondence address

TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road
Nankai District

Tianjin

the PRC

Postal code
300381

Telephone number
86-22-2393 0000

Facsimile number
86-22-2393 0100

E-mail address
fu_yn@tjcep.com

Company Secretary in Hong Kong
Mr. Ip Pui Sum

Correspondence address
2/F, Jonsim Place

228 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone number
852-2803 2373

Facsimile number
852-2540 6365
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E-mail address
ip_ps@tjcep.com

Securities Affairs Representative
Mr. Gu Wenhui

Correspondence address

TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road
Nankai District

Tianjin

the PRC

Postal code
300381

Telephone number
86-22-2393 0000

Facsimile number
86-22-2393 0100

E-mail address
gu_wh@tjcep.com

Designated media for the Company’s announcement

Newspapers for the Company’s announcement
Shanghai Securities, Hong Kong Wen Wei Po and The Standard

(1) Website for the Interim Report

Website operated by the SSE
for the disclosure of the Interim Report
http://www.sse.com.cn

Website operated by Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the disclosure of the Interim Report
http://www.hkex.com.hk

(2) Place where the Interim Report is available
for inspection
Office of the Secretary to the Board
18/F, TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road
Nankai District
Tianjin
the PRC
Postal code: 300381
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Other information

The initial registered address of the Company
No. 10 Hubei Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC

Initial date of registration of the Company
8th June 1993

Dates of changes in registration of the Company
26th August 1998, 8th January 2001, 23rd July 2001 and
25th February 2003

Change in registered address of the Company
No. 45 Guizhou Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC

Number of business licence of the Company
Qi He Jin Zong Zi No. 009079

State tax registration number
Guo Shui Jin Zi 120114103065501

Local tax registration number
Di Shui Jin Zi 120114103065501

Agent for custody of the Company’s non-circulating Shares
China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited,
Shanghai Branch

Details of the auditors appointed by the Company
(1) PRC auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian
Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.

Correspondence address
11th Floor
PricewaterhouseCoopers Center
202 Hu Bin Road

Shanghai

the PRC

(2) International auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Correspondence address
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong
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Il. Accounting Data and Business Statistics — * S B EBEHREEBRERE
Highlights

1. In accordance with the Accounting Standards and the Accounting ~ (—) IZBBHR B (R E S EAD M EEEHIE)

Regulations for Business Enterprises in the PRC (collectively “PRC (Bt P EErRADRE - Ao RENE
GAAP"), the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) achieved REN([AREE]) ERBEHNERFMERA
a net profit of Rmb93,789,000 during the reporting period. Details R#93,789,0007T ° A& HAM FFRHI K
of the major financial indicators for the reporting period together FRFENE2MBEROT

with the comparative figures of the corresponding period and last
year are as follows:

As at As at Percentage(%)
30th June 31st December Increase(+)/
2005 2004 Decrease(-)
A 20054 A2004%F
6H30H 12A31H REEHR
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 L FHE
ARKFIT AREFIT R (+/-%)
Current assets MENEE 1,756,557 1,865,556 -5.84
Current liabilities mENaE 1,460,723 508,695 +187.15
Total assets BEE 4,765,556 4,657,758 +2.31
Shareholders’ equity PR R e
(excluding minority interests) (TEL R RER) 2,196,552 2,235,763 -1.75
Net asset value per Share BREFEE Rmb1.65 Rmb1.68 -1.79
Adjusted net asset value per Share ABENERFEE Rmb1.63 Rmb1.66 -1.81
Percentage(%)
Six months ended 30th June Increase(+)/
2005 2004 Decrease(-)
BZ6H30B L6EA
20054 20044 FHER
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 b EFEH
ARBETFT ARBETFT 2 (+/-%)
Net profit EFE 93,789 144,138 34,93
Net profit excluding MR EINEATRE
extraordinary items FHE 93,760 147,358 -36.37
Earnings per Share (weighted average) BRMEE () Rmb0.07 Rmb0.11 -36.36
Return on net assets FEENGEE 4.27% 7.01% &2 39.09 {EE 72
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHEENRESREFE 223,111 87,009 -126.56
2. Non-operating Income (Z) BEINIA
Rmb’000
ARBTFT
Net non-operating income Hih BIREHEIMIA ~ 2 %8 43
Effect of income tax FriST R 281 (14)
29

6  Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2005 Interim Report



Difference between accounts prepared under PRC GAAP and HK

GAAP

Items

HE

In accordance with PRC GAAP
Adjustment made in

accordance with HK GAAP
Reserve of A Share Convertible Bonds
Fair value of A Share Convertible Bonds
Impact of deferred taxation
Minority interests (reclassified)
In accordance with HK GAAP

Note:

Return on net assets and earnings per Share as calculated according (/)
to the “Information Disclosure for Companies Issuing Listed
Securities” (No. 9) of the China Securities Regulatory Commission

(the “CSRC") are as follows:

Profit for the reporting period

A8 HFE

Profit from principal operations

Operating profit

Net profit

Net profit, net of
non-operating income

R EgHHIE

BEBGER
HEER

A B ERRE

ABEEzDAEE

EERFZE

LEERER (EDH)

BEBGER

The difference arises from the difference in the method used for it
recognising the closing value of the A Share Convertible Bonds in

accordance with the PRC GAAP and HK GAAP and the
classification of minority interests.

=R
ST

R

HI SN TR
BTN

Net profit
Current Previous
period period
ERE

T LHEE
(Rmb’000) (Rmb’000)
(AR¥®Fr) (ARETT)
93,789 144,138

-16,579

5,471
-1,050 1,030
81,631 145,168

I «

Return on net assets

Fully Weighted

diluted average
FEEWRSER

EEEE ik B

% %

% %

8.36 8.13

6.45 6.27

4.27 4.15

4.27 4.15

(=) BRSNEFHERER

Shareholders’ equity
Beginning Closing
BRER

EIRIIE 4 B
(Rmb’000) (Rmb’000)
ARETE) (ARETT)
2,235,763 2,196,552
100,215 100,215
-47,041 -63,620
15,524 20,995
16,581 15,531
2,321,042 2,269,673

Bt ERRANTEEARENFESIERER
ABREENHREEN D BERERNDET AT

ERPAZSEEERZEG((TEEESE])
(RRZETEFARAERRERBRA (B9
ST EMFEERRETMERKENT

Earnings per Share

Fully Weighted

diluted average
(=36

EEEE ik B

Rmb Rmb

AR AR

0.14 0.14

0.11 0.11

0.07 0.07

0.07 0.07
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ll. Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders = - B X @ B R B R 1§ R

1.

Changes in share capital (—) RAEZBER

(1) The following table showing changes in share capital of the (1) AEBEEA - BRERARREEHTRHD
Company and number of Shares in issue during the reporting HEMNBHERAETE
period:
During the reporting period, the Company has not issued any REEIA - RABEIER - IR AL
bonus Shares, increased its share capital or listed any employee NEBEE TRR eI - KRR #ITR
Shares. There is no change in the structure of the share capital BB MR A EEGRE LR -

of the Company and the number of Shares in issue.

Increase/(decrease) during the reporting period

AEEBREHEN/ (BY)
Transfer
of surplus End of the
Beginning Share Bonus to capital Share reporting
of the year placement issue NEs issue Others  Sub-total period

EAEY [ &R T By -0 Mt REREHR
(Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares)

(%) (%) (&) (&) (%) (&) (%) (&)
A Non-circulating Shares — AR
(TARER)
1. Promoter Shares 1. ERARR
comprising; A
State Shares 5k 839,020,000 — — - — — — 839,020,000
Domestic Shares MER 38,485,000 — - - — - — 38,485,000
Subvtotal AARERAAE 877,505,000 - - - - - — 877,505,000
B. Circulating Shares = BLmREkn
(TRER)
1. Rmb ordinary Shares 1. AREERR
("A Shares") (TAR)) 112,495,000 - . - - . — 112495000
2. Non-domestic listed 2. B EmEER
foreign currency Shares i)
("H Shares”) 340,000,000 — - — — - — 340,000,000
Sub-total Ei@kiast 452,495,000 - - - - - — 452,495,000
C.Totdl = R 1,330,000,000 - - - - _ — 1,330,000,000
The terms of the total sum of Rmb1,200,000,000 A Share AT HEARKR,200,000,0007T
Convertible Bonds issued by the Company did not allow any VAR R - RARE AN B AREAE R
conversion of Shares during the reporting period. Therefore, H o A - #lE 20056308 - XBHE
as at 30th June 2005, no share conversion has taken place. At PRAEREE A - RARMEIR - RnERIE
the end of the reporting period, non—circulating Shares RAFEETHERANKNL65.98% @ iiE
accounted for approximately 65.98% of the total issued share RAE R AR B 1T A KR434.02% »

capital of the Company, and circulating Shares accounted for
approximately 34.02% of the total issued share capital of the
Company.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2005 Interim Report



2,

Details of shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)

(1) Number of Shareholders as at the end of the reporting period

o)

As at 30th June 2005, the Company had 30,109 Shareholders
comprising 30,000 Shareholders holding domestic Shares and

109 Shareholders holding H Shares.

As at 30th June 2005, the top ten Shareholders were as follows:

Increase(+)/
Decrease(-)
during the
reporting
period

Name of Shareholders RHEH

LA MR

Tianjin Municipal Investment ~ REMERE Nil
Company Limited ERRA EEA

HKSCC Nominees Limited FERAER (REA)  +372,000
(Note 2) BRAE (#2) i

China Construction Bank -Boshi ~ FEIERHT-ERERE  Unknown
Industry Securities Investment ~ 1TEREEAFREES A
Fund

Shenyang Railway Bureau ERERREERRELA Nil
Economy Development Co., Ltd. B

China Huadian Power Plant PEESEUEETE +19,000
Equipment Engineering (£8) 247 eyl
(Group) Co., Ltd.

Industrial and Commercial Bank ~ FETHRT-FHEEE  Unknown
of China-BOC International PEBEEEANAEN A
Investment Managers Focus BAREEe
Securities Investment Fund

Bank of Communications-Anshun 37— %I Unknown
Securities Investment Fund REES il

Galaxy Securities RERTESER Nil

EfEAT LR

China Construction Bank-Baokang R EIZR 1T - &R Unknown
Consumer Goods Securities BERESFRAES il
Investment Fund

Shen Yin Wan Guo Securities BREEZESFERAT-  Unknown
Co,, Ltd. - CITI-UBS Limited TEiE— UBS LIMITED A

Notes:

Number of
Shares held

at the end

of the reporting
period
FHRERR
Hhug

839,020,000
336,946,900

3,526,934

3,500,000

1,866,858

1,659,053

1,599,901

1,500,000

1,364,630

1,300,490

(1)  There is no relationship and no parties acting in concert between the
1st largest Shareholder and the 2nd to the 10th largest Shareholders.
However, it is not certain whether there are any such relationships
among the 2nd to the 10th largest Shareholders.

(2)  Pursuant to the register of members of the Company as provided by HKSCC
Nominees Limited, 336,946,900 H Shares were held by HKSCC Nominees
Limited on behalf of various clients. There is no client who was interested
in 5% or more of the total issued share capital of the Company.

(3)  The top ten Shareholders are not strategic investors of the Company.

(D) A2FRR (TRERD BERNAB

(1)

R R BCR BB

HZE2005F6A30H  ARAIKREREH A
30,109 HiF : RERBRB KRB &
30,000 ' SNERRIE R L A109 °

(2) #ZE2005%6H30R + ARQFH10% &

RERRFRIERMT

Number of
Percentage  Class Shares  Type of Shares
tototal  (circulating/ pledged (State Shares
share capital  non-circulating) or frozen or H Shares)
(%) RGEH Efd RRME
BAl  (BRED REN (ARKR
(%) KKE) kHEE HER)
63.084  Non-circulating Nil  State Shares
ARE £ BEER
25330 Circulating Unknown  H Shares
ERA A SNER
0265  Circulating Unknown  Individual Shares
Bt A HELRR
0.263  Non-circulating Unknown  Legal person Shares
A A HEEAR
0.140  Circulating Unknown  Individual Shares
ERA A HEDREK
0125 Circulating Unknown  Individual Shares
B A HELTR
0120 Circulating Unknown  Individual Shares
g AR HELTR
0.113  Non-circulating Unknown  Legal person Shares
A AR HEEAR
0.103  Circulating Unknown  Individual Shares
B AR HELTR
0.098  Circulating Unknown  Individual Shares
g AR HELTR

it

(1) ARFAEIBREREB2ZEF108 KR
RZETEEEMABEL—RTBHEE  F
2BREFI0BABRRZERMES FHEEM
R —BITEHRRE -

20 REFEFRET (KEBA)BERDA
(HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED)#2 #t 89 i% 5
£ - Hi5H 2336,946,900M HR T3 R &
ZEEPHMFHE  YEEFAEHNEFPFHAEA
REBEITHRAS %A £ 2 HEE o

(3) HI0OBRERARBERETRAARNRBERE

o
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(3) The top ten Shareholders holding circulating Shares as at 30th

June 2005 were as follows:

Name of Shareholders

BRER

(3) #EHZE2005%6H308  ARQAFEI10E 7%
BRERFRELAT

HKSCC Nominees Limited (Note 1) %ﬁ%t@%%iﬁ (RIEBA) BRAR (£1)

China Construction Bank-Boshi B AR R
Industry Securities Investment Fund

China Huadian Power Plant Equipment ~ HEIZEE
Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China-BOC International Investment
Managers Focus Securities Investment

B TR 1T

Fund

Bank of Communications-Anshun RBRIT-LIEEHREES
Securities Investment Fund

China Construction Bank-Baokang HEERIRIT-EREE

Consumer Goods Securities
Investment Fund

Shen Yin Wan Guo Securities Co., HIREREAFRA
Ltd. - CITI-UBS Limited fEHE— UBS LIl\/IITED

Industrial and Commercial Bank of HE T aRTT
China - Industrial Convertible ERREESE
Bond Composed Security
Investment Fund

Shanxi Taiyuan Rixing Industry
Company Limited

HSBC Nominees (HK) Limited

WASAEEEXRERA

Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the register of members of the Company as provided by
HKSCC Nominees Limited, 336,946,900 H Shares were held by HKSCC
Nominees Limited on behalf of various clients. There is no client who
was interested in 5% or more of the total issued share capital of the
Company.

(2) Itis not certain whether there are any relationships among the top
ten Shareholders holding circulating Shares.

(3) Itis not certain whether there are any relationships among the 2nd
to the 10th largest Shareholders and the top ten Shareholders holding
circulating Shares.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2005 Interim Report
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i

Number of

circulating Shares

held as at Type of Shares
30th June 2005 (A, B, H Shares

BZ2005%6A30A or others)
58 ®BE (A B

HRERNEE HRZHE)
336,946,900 H Shares

& 3,526,934 A Shares
1,866,858 A Shares

1,659,053 A Shares

1,599,901 A Shares

1,364,630 A Shares

1,300,490 A Shares

1,082,300 A Shares

711,790 A Shares

656,000 H Shares

REEBERREE (REA)ARA
(HKSCC NOMINEES L|M|TED)$E1#\E@Hx$
A fft - E35H 2336,946,9000% HAR Jh &
ZERFAEFE  TEIMENZEFFHARN
RNAEEITHRANS% A 2 2 -
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3.

A Share Convertible Bonds

M

(2)

Issue of the A Share Convertible Bonds

As approved by CSRC under document Zheng Jian Fa Xing Zi
[2004] No. 100, the Company issued the A Share Convertible
Bonds in the sum of Rmb1,200,000,000 on 1st July 2004, which
were listed on the SSE on 19th July 2004. The A Share
Convertible Bonds have a convertible term of five years from
1st July 2005 to 30th June 2009. The “Prospectus relating to
the Issue of the A Share Convertible Bonds” (the “Prospectus”),
the “Notice of Issue” and the “Notice of Listing” have been
published on the China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities
Journal and the website of the SSE on 26th June 2004 and
10th July 2004 respectively.

Holders of the A Share Convertible Bonds during the
reporting period

Number of holders of the A Share Convertible Bonds as at the
end of the reporting period is 2,067.

The top ten holders of the A Share Convertible Bonds were as
follows:

(Z) AREE

(1)

(2)

AREERTER

M EEE e (FEEITT2004]11005%)
N - AAER2004F 71 HELT
HAFARB12EBTAKRER - W 2004
F7R19OBELRABMNER S - EREAR
AEHEF - EARHIH 20057 A 1H £2009
F6A308 - (EEEEHAES) ([FH
ED)  (BORAEYIKLETRAEEIES
R 20046 526 HF2004F7 108 T
EE(PEFBZSHFR)  (EEEFHORLE
R T4 -

AREERFEARER

HE2005F6A30H ' ARREGEIRA AR
/52,067 °

AIIOBRABERAABRINT

Amounts
Holders of the A Share held at the end of the Approximate
Convertible Bonds reporting period percentage
AREEREARE AREHRERYE FRESH
Rmb %
(AR®) %
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. mEYZRRE (£2) ROERAR 124,121,000 10.343
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China - Industrial RE TR A A
Convertible Bond Composed Security Investment Fund RAREFRERS 114,449,000 9.537
China Petroleum Finance Co., Ltd. R BEREERR 98,674,000 8.223
Shen Yin Wan Guo Securities BRERESERAR -
Co., Ltd. - CITI-UBS Limited FEHE— UBS LIMITED 91,467,000 7.622
Bank of China - Fortis Haitong Yield Growth Security HERT -8R
Investment Fund EREFREES 82,344,000 6.862
Huatai Property Insurance Company of China, Limited ERVERBRHEBR A 70,215,000 5.851
China Social Insurance Fund One-O-Two Combination 2EMRES-T-HE 58,482,000 4.874
Shen Yin Wan Guo Securities Co., Ltd - BREEESFERAA —EY
HSBC-SOCIETE GENERALE — SOCIETE GENERALE 46,356,000 3.863
International Finance - Standard Chartered - BIBX £ — &+ — CITIGROUP GLOBAL
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS LIMITED MARKETS LIMITED 37,609,000 3.134
Bank of Communications - Hua An Bao Li RRBIT - EREF
Securities Investment Fund REEAREES 30,498,000 2.542

ARAXBRROERATDVO-_ZESZTIFEHHRE
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3)

4)

(5)

(6)

Changes in the A Share Convertible Bonds during the (3)
reporting period
Prior to
the current
changes converted
(Rmb) Shares
KR (Rmb)
B #R
(AR®%) (AR®)
A Share Convertible Bonds A IR (& 1,200,000,000 0

As at the end of the reporting period, there has been no
conversion of the A Share Convertible Bonds. The reporting
period for the sale back (the “Sale Back”) of the A Share
Convertible Bonds by the holders to the Company began on
5th August 2005. Subsequent to the expiry of the reporting
period, on 11th August 2005, the accumulated Sale Back
amount of the A Share convertible Bonds amounted to
Rmb823,902,000. After the Sale Back, the remaining gross
balance of the A Share Convertible Bonds was
Rmb376,098,000.

Aggregated share conversion of the A Share
Convertible Bonds during the reporting period

The terms of the A Share Convertible Bonds did not allow any
conversion into the A Shares during the reporting period.

Adjustments in the conversion price

As at the end of the reporting period, the conversion price
(the “Conversion Price”) of the A Share Convertible Bonds was
Rmb7.70. The Company published the announcements on the
implementation plan of the A Share dividend distribution and
the adjustment to the Conversion Price on 22nd July 2005.
The Conversion Price was adjusted to Rmb7.60. The Conversion
Price was approved to be adjusted downward by 20% in the
Board meeting held on 28th July 2005. As at the date of this
Interim Report, the Conversion Price is Rmb6.08.

The guarantor of the A Share Convertible Bonds and
counter-guarantee

The A Share Convertible Bonds was guaranteed by Tianjin
Branch of China Construction Bank (the “Guarantor”) and
counter-guaranteed by the Company’s controlling Shareholder
to the Guarantor.
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(7) Other information of the A Share Convertible Bonds

Holders of the A Share Convertible Bonds were allowed to convert
the A Share Convertible Bonds into A Shares since 1st July 2005.
For a consecutive 20 trading days from 1st July 2005 to 28th
July 2005, the closing prices of the A Shares were lower than
70% of the Conversion Price for that period. As such, the
Company published the announcements relating to the Sale
Back of A Share Convertible Bonds (Code: 110874) on the
Shanghai Securities Journal, Hong Kong Wen Wei Po and The
Standard on 29th July 2005, 2nd August 2005 and 4th August
2005 respectively. The reporting period of the Sale Back expired
after the closing of the trading hours of the SSE on 11th August
2005. According to the data provided by the Shanghai Branch
of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited,
during the reporting period of the Sale Back, the accumulated
Sale Back amount of the A Share Convertible Bonds amounted
to Rmb823,902,000. The Company has deposited all the fund
for the Sale Back to the designated account of the Shanghai
Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited based on the reported Sale Back amount. In accordance
with the relevant operating rules of the Shanghai Branch of China
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, the Sale
Back payment date is 16th August 2005. The Sale Back led to
an increase of the Company’s 2005 financial expenses by
Rmb16,478,040. The Company has arranged bank loans to
accommodate the cash outflow required as a result of the Sale
Back.

After the completion of the Sale Back, the Company will have
the remaining 3,760,980 A Share Convertible Bonds. Based
on the Conversion Price of Rmb6.08/Share, the remaining
3,760,980 A Share Convertible Bonds can be converted into
approximately 61,860,000 A Shares, which is substantially less
than approximately 197,370,000 A Shares, a reduction of
approximately 69% if calculate based on the total number of
12,000,000 A Share Convertible Bonds before the Sale Back.
Pursuant to the “Implementation Method of the Issue of
Convertible Bonds by Listed Companies” and the “Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SSE”, the remaining
A Share Convertible Bonds, which has not been sold back to
the Company, will continue to trade on the SSE.
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Controlling Shareholder ()

As at 30th June 2005, Tianjin Municipal Investment Company Limited
(the “TMICL") held 839,020,000 State Shares, representing
approximately 63.084% of the total issued share capital of the
Company and it is the Company’s largest Shareholder (the
“Controlling Shareholder”). During the reporting period, there was
no change in the Controlling Shareholder.

Substantial Shareholders’ and other persons’ interests (&)
and/or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

As at 30th June 2005, the following entity, other than a Director,
supervisor (the “Supervisors”) or chief executive of the Company,
had interests and/or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”):

Name of Number and class
Shareholder Capacity of securities
BERBESEB &4 EHHERER
(Note 1)
(5t1)
TMICL Beneficial owner 839,020,000
RIEMIR BB A State Shares(L)
839,020,000/%
Bk (FE)
Note:
1. The letter “L” represents the entity’s long positions in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there is no person (other than a Director,
Supervisor or chief executive of the Company) who, as at 30th June
2005, had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and the Senior

Management of the Company

Directors’ and Supervisors’ interests and/or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations

As at 30th June 2005, the interests and/or short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which would have to be notified to the Company and Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or otherwise, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, to be notified to the Company and Hong Kong Stock
Exchange were as follows:

The Company/

mEFXF - EF EBREEA

EfRiA

() ESRESRAQTHNEBEENRS

HERORESNEZER KR

B ZE20056%F6A30H  REE EERARNH
MERITERABRAR R REEMEREE
(EERBEHRHEKGIEXV BMH) HRMGD -
EARMDRESFT - BRIEBEFHFRIPEENEXV
HRE7 k8 HWAMEARRR REBHZAT
WSRO RE  IREESRBEEGE
3652 KA AR E L MANER R, S0K
B RIRELETBEITANESTLARSNIZE
STRIEME AR REBHIFTOERS R, K
KBTS -

Approximate
percentage

in the issued
share capital of
the Company/

name of associated corporations
associated HAEDT
corporations Number and TR EE
Name b NN Capacity class of securities ERITRAN
i HEEEER 54 BEHERER RHBESH
(Note)
(5t)
Director
BEE
Wang Zhanying The Company Beneficial owner 5,000 domestic 0.0038%
% /NS EREEA Shares (L)
5,000/ A & % (45 &)
Supervisor
E=
Nie Youzhuang The Company Beneficial owner 700 domestic 0.00053%
BmAA iN/NE] EnlEEA Shares (L)
7002 R E B (4F &)
Note:  The letter “L" represents the person’s long positions in the shares and underlying i [4f B ] R 2 AR B AN 2 m] 3¢ B 4G 0% (8 1) i

shares of the Company or its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief
executives of the Company, who, as at 30th June 2005, had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which would have to
be notified to the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or otherwise, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, to be
notified to the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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SRTHAEHE2005%F6 A30F - AW
AABHEFEMAEZE (EXREHREE
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RIBEFELS N EEHEXVBHFETIRSD BA
MERRRREBBITOERS R, XA
AR IR B 5 & HA & 5 15) S5 352 {6 B RC A AT il &
RMRmERR AR - SRE ETETA
NEZTEFRZGHNEEFAANE ARG RE
B TR R R KA o
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Appointment or removal of the Directors, Supervisors or

the senior management of the Company during the
reporting period

)

(@)

3)

In the 2004 Annual General Meeting held on 31st May 2005,
the resolutions in respect of appointments of Mr. Wang Xiangfei
and Mr. Gao Zongze as the independent non-executive
Directors were approved.

In the staff representative meeting held on 22nd February 2005,
Mr. Zhang Minggqi was appointed as the Supervisor for a term
of three years.

In the 12th meeting of the Third Board of the Company, the
Board accepted the resignation of Mr. An Pingdong as the Chief
Accountant of the Company for the reason of job change and
appointed Ms. Chen Yinxing as the Chief Accountant of the
Company for a term commencing from 22nd February 2005
to 21st February 2008, and Mr. Guo Hui as the Chief Economist
of the Company for a term commencing from 22nd February
2005 to 21st February 2008.

During the reporting period, save as disclosed above, there is no
change in the Directors, Supervisors and the senior management of
the Company.
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V. Management Discussion and Analysis

Analysis on the major operating results and financial
conditions of the Group

During the reporting period, the Group generated income from
principal operations of Rmb276,457,000, profit from principal
operations of Rmb183,677,000, net profit of Rmb93,789,000 and
earnings per Share of Rmb0.07. The net profit for the reporting
period dropped by approximately 34.93% compared with the same
period last year. The main reasons for the decrease in sewage water
treatment income were the increase in the overall financial expenses
of the Company for the first half year and the suspension of operation
of the old system of Jizhuangzi Sewage Water Treatment Plant for
modification since the beginning of February 2005. The new
expansion project of Jizhuangzi Sewage Water Treatment Plant and
construction project of Xianyanglu Sewage Water Treatment Plant
have not started to collect sewage water treatment services fee.

Operation conditions of the Group during the reporting
period

(1) Scope of the principal businesses of the Group and its operating
conditions

The principal businesses of the Group are (i) the design,
management, operation, technological consultation of sewage
water treatment plant and their related infrastructure facilities
and auxiliary services; (ii) the design, toll collection, repair and
maintenance, management, opertaion, technological
consultation of toll roads and auxiliary services in relation to
the operation of the Southeastern Half Ring Road of the Middle
Ring of Tianjin, Tianjin City Indebted Road Construction for
Vehicle-passage Toll Collection Office and their related auxiliary
facilities; and (iii) the development and operation of
environmental protection technology and products.

(a) Operations of the sewage water treatment plants and
construction of sewage water treatment plants

The Company’s sewage water treatment income is derived
from the “Sewage Water Processing Agreement” (the
“Sewage Water Processing Agreement”) entered into
between Tianjin Sewage Company (“Sewage Company”)
and the Company on 10th October 2000. During the
reporting period, two sewage water treatment plants
processed 70,730,000 cubic meters of sewage water in
total, representing a decrease of 38.5% as compared with
115,083,000 cubic meters of the same period last year.
The main reason for the decrease was the suspension of
operation of the old system of Jizhuangzi Sewage Water
Treatment Plant for modification since the beginning of
February 2005. During the reporting period, the
Company derived sewage water treatment income
amounted to approximately Rmb136,517,000 pursuant
to the “Sewage Water Processing Agreement”.
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During the reporting period, Xiaohe Sewage Water
Treatment Plant of Guizhou Capital Water Co., Ltd.
(“Guizhou Capital”), the Company’s subsidiary, processed
13,445,000 cubic meters of sewage water in total, and
received approximately Rmb11,294,000 as income from
the operation of sewage water treatment.

Income from construction of sewage water treatment
plants was derived from the “Sewage Water Plant
Expansion Project Construction Fee Agreement” (the
“Construction Agreement”) entered into between Tianjin
Sewage Company and the Company on 24th September
2001. During the reporting period, the completed
construction fees of the three in-progress construction
projects (the “Three In-progress Construction Projects”)
amounted to approximately Rmb180,380,000. In
accordance with the progress of the Three In-progress
Construction Projects, the Company recognised an
income of approximately Rmb92,280,000. As at the date
of this Interim Report, the installation and adjustment
work of the expansion project of Jizhuangzi Sewage Water
Treatment Plant and the construction project of
Xianyanglu Sewage Water Treatment Plant have been
basically completed. The discharged water met the State
second class discharged water standard and was inspected
by the Tianjin Environmental Bureau and passed the
relevant qualification requirements. The above sewage
sludge areas of the two sewage water plants are
undergoing equipment and facilities installation tests. It
is expected that the equipment and facilities installation
work will be completed at the end of this year. The above
construction projects for the two sewage treatment plants
will commence operation for charging sewage water
treatment fees. The construction project of Beicang
Sewage Water Treatment Plant proceeded as schedule. It
is expected to commence operation for charging sewage
water treatment fees by the end of 2005. The modification
project of the old system of Jizhuangzi Sewage Water
Treatment Plant was expected to start waterflow test and
adjustment at the end of the year.

An amount of Rmb97,337,500 in the accounts receivables
from Tianjin Sewage Company has been recovered in July
2005. The Company is negotiating with Tianjin Sewage
Company to settle the remaining portion. Currently, the
aging periods of the Company’s accounts receivables are
principally within one year.
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Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Administrative
Measures on Licensed Operation of Tianjin Muncipal
Public Utilities (No. 91 of the Government Order of Tianjin
People’s Government) issued by the Tianjin Muncipal
Government which will be implemented on 1st
September 2005, the Company will apply for the sewage
water treatment licensed operation right from the Tianjin
Construction Administrative Management Department on
1st September 2005. The result of such application will
be disclosed by the Company as soon as practicable.

(b) Operations of toll collection business

During the reporting period, the Company’s toll collection
business realised an income of approximately
Rmb32,645,000. Since the change of toll collection
arrangement to subcontracting toll collection in the
second half of 2003, the toll collection business has no
major changes.

(2) Businesses or products accounting for more than 10% of the
principal business

During the reporting period, income generated from the
sewage water treatment and construction of sewage water
treatment plants of the Company accounted for approximately
86.85% and 11.81% of the total income from its principal
operations respectively. Income, costs and gross profit margin
of such businesses as compared with the same period last year
were set out below:

Description of the principal businesses of the Company

Income from Costs from
principal principal
Business operations operations
B3 B35
&% B A
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
ANRETFT NE# T
Sewage water treatment and KRR

construction of sewage water KRR
treatment plants BRER 240,091 62,054
Road and toll collection stations ERRNEER 32,645 8,893
Including: connected transactions £h EERS 228,796 53,667

Basis for determination of the pricing for connected transactions:
Pricing was determined in accordance on normal commercial terms
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(2) EFEEBI0%N LHITERERIBR

TEREHA ZK“*TE@\;%*J%EE&\;%*E
BREREFTERMNEA - 2RMEER
Al E & EH WA BT KL 86.85%
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Percentage Percentage
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3. Analysis of principal activities by geographical locations () FEXEBIHERRR

Increase or
decrease of

income from
principal operations
compared with

the same

period

Income from last year

principal operations FEEBWAL

Regions DHE FEEBBA L F R
Rmb’000 %

ARETT %

Tianjin RiE 265,163 -17.89
Guizhou EM 11,294 +3.76

4. During the reporting period, the connected transactions () RBEHA > AR EEZERRRRAEF

relating to the sale of productions and provision of REAHEERNREHRE IRBNEERS
labour service by the Company to the Controlling BEBmAARBORT -
Shareholder and its subsidiaries amounted to Rmb nil.
5. Operations and results of the companies in which the (7)) TEERQAFDNEERRARXE
Company has controlling interests
Name of Company Major products or services Registered capital Scale of assets Net profit
NEEH TEERIRY HfER BERE T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

ARMFR ARMFR ARMFR

Tianjin Water Recycling Production and sales of recycled water,
Company Limited development and construction of
(“Water Recycling”) facilities for re-used water; manufacture,
installation, commissioning and operation
of equipment for recycled water and etc. 20,000 152,798 -4,532
RERK BEKEE - #HE - BEKREN
BREERA P - R BEKRERE
(TR=HAK]) 2K ETE
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Name of Company

DEEE

Major products or services

TEERIERY

Guizhou Capital
management of urban sewage water

treatment plants and its auxiliary facilities,

drinking water treatment plants and solid
waste treatment facilities; research,
development and marketing of
environmental conservation technology;
consultancy services of water treatment
facilities and environmental

conservation project

0T 7K IR R

BB ERERNE -

BB RE R YR IE

RHHIFIE

e S P
RIRFMTAORF B FIHERE
IKERIR R I -
RETIEEN

A B RS

N

EIES

Manufacture and sales of construction
materials, new compound material
products, polymer material products;
technical consultation on new

piping materials

Tianjin Capital New Materials
Company Limited
(“Capital Materials")

REBIERM BEMK - FRES
BRAE MEEG - B Fk
([BIZEM]) HmBLE - HE

AL HEKEM
BT AE
Notes:

Water Recycling: As Water Recycling was still in the adjustment and testing stage, it
incurred loss for the first half of 2005. On 8th August 2005, the Board considered and
approved the proposal in relation to the contribution of Rmb80 million to the registered
capital of Water Recycling. The capital increase of Water Recycling will be applied on self-
financed capital of investment fund on the construction project of Xianyanglu Sewage
Water Treatment Plant. The balance of which will be applied on upgrading the
technological level of Jizhuangzi Sewage Water Treatment Plant and increasing the current
working capital of Water Recycling. Xianyanglu Sewage Water Treatment Plant serves
the residential area within the planned scope and the industrial users such as Yangliuging
Power Plant. The designed production capacity was 5 cubic meters per day. The total
estimated construction investment amounted to approximately Rmb134,294,600. The
construction period was about two years. After the capital increase, the registered capital
of Water Recycling will increase from Rmb20 million to Rmb100 million. The total capital
contribution from the Company was Rmb98 million, accounting for 98% of the registered
capital of Water Recycling after the capital increase. The total capital contribution from
the Tianjin Municipal Bureau amounted to Rmb2 million, accounting for 2% of the
registered capital of Water Recycling after the capital increase.

Guizhou Capital: The operations of Guizhou Capital was normal. The amount of water
processed was up to the requirements stipulated in the Construction Agreement. It will
further expand into the market of the sewage water treatment plant surrounding Guiyang.

Development, construction, operation and

Registered capital Scale of assets Net profit

EMER BERK FRE
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARETR ARETR ARETFT
100,000 159,025 789
37,500 42,707 -2,169

it
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Problems and difficulties occurred during the course of
operation and solutions

The electricity charges were adjusted in June 2004. According to
the statistics, the electricity charges were adjusted from Rmb0.556/
KW to Rmb0.61/KW. The electricity charges per KW increased by
Rmb0.054. The electricity charges were again adjusted in May 2005,
from Rmb0.61 /KW to Rmb0.64/KW. The electricity charges per KW
increased by Rmb0.03. This increased the costs of the operation of
the sewage water treatment. The water operational branch of the
Company reduced such adverse impact to a certain extent through
various measures.

Investments

(1) As stated in paragragh 3(3) under the section headed “III.
Changes in share capital and Shareholders”, the remaining
gross balance of the A Share Convertible Bonds amounted to
Rmb376,098,000. As at the date of this Interim Report, the
proceeds in the sum of Rmb150,850,700 of the A Share
Convertible Bonds proceeds has been utilised, of which
Rmb77,404,500 of the A Share Convertible Bonds proceeds
has been utilised in this reporting period. The unutilised amount
will continue to be invested in Three In-progress Construction
Projects as follows:

Expansion projects
of Jizhuangzi
Sewage Water
Treatment Plant
(including the

(R) g&

THREERSERBERSR

REME2004F6 AMEEERMLRE &R

5

BHAREKOLL, EABIARE

0617/ B BESLHERARK0.0547T ;
2005F B5AMEX —XFE - £ ARK0.61
T EREIARK6AT,E BESHE
ARM0.037T - BEOSKEBRNIES - AR
RIKISBE D A RIBBRREZ A EOER - £
—TRELFBRETETNFEZ -

() REBR

(1

(Expansion)
Project

construction (Sewage water
project of discharge project

ERRAZE(ARE T

Xianyanglu around
Committed Sewage Water south-eastern
project name Treatment Plant) rural areas)
BRELETF
FREERIRER
(BERS® (FER) IR
5K R R (BERAER—
AHEEEE T#EAE) FHKIRE)
Investment before the Sale Back (Rmb’000) 620,000 321,000
B ERRERAZE (ARBTT)
Investment after the Sale Back (Rmb’000) 142,098 150,000
BERBERAZE(ARE T
Changes in the projects No No
EREEIAR & &
Actual investment (Rmb’000) 25,206 95,125
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The utilisation of the proceeds and
the work progress

ERESFRER ERAER
Rt 9

(2) Major investment made out of funds other than proceeds from (2)

The adjustment work of the expansion project of Jizhuangzi Sewage Water Treatment
Plant and the construction project of Xianyanglu Sewage Water Treatment Plant have been
basically completed. The discharged water met the State second class discharged water
standard and was inspected by the Tianjin Environmental Bureau and passed the qualification
requirements. The above sewage sludge areas of the two sewage water plants are undergoing
equipment and facilities installation tests. It is expected that the equipment and facilities
installation work will be completed, and these two sewage water plants will commence
operation for charging sewage water treatment fees at the end of this year. Construction
project of Beicang Sewage Water Treatment Plant proceeded as schedule. It is expected to
commence operation for charging sewage water treatment fees by the end of 2005.
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WERRAEE - FRHBWEUSKERREE - LR)5KERMTIZRAEER - 85
2006F FRERKRAEE  WEUSKERERBE -

FEEELHARBR

subscriptions

On 25th April 2005, the Company entered into a “licensed
operation framework agreement” relating to the (BOT) project
of Chibi Sewage Treatment Plant with Chibi Municipal
Construction Bureau. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company
will establish a holding subsidiary to construct and operate
Chibi Sewage Treatment Plant. The designed capacity of phase
one of Chibi Sewage Treatment Plant is 40,000 cubic meters
per day. The construction period is about 24 months (including
pipe network) . The licensed operation term will be 25 years.
The estimated total investment in the project is approximately
Rmb95 million.

The Company entered into a legally binding cooperative
framework agreement with Hongwu Municipal Construction
Bureau on 9th May 2005 in relation to the cooperative
operation of the facilities for the water plants and sewage water
treatment plants in Hongwu, the PRC. The Company intended
to acquire and operate the assets by way of cash through TOT
(Transfer-Operate-Transfer) method. The assets to be acquired
comprise: a sewage water treatment plant with a designed
capacity of 70,000 cubic meters per day and two water supply
plants with designed capacity of 80,000 cubic meters and
30,000 cubic meters per day respectively. The parties thereto
agreed to establish a water supply and sewage company (the
“NewCo") for which the Company will own at least 90% of
the shareholding. Hongwu Municipal Construction Bureau will
also grant the exclusive operation right of the water plants
and sewage water treatment plants to the NewCo. The
concession term of operation will be 30 years. Discussions and
negotiations on terms regarding the agreement on franchised
operations and water pricing are in progress.
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On 13th June 2005, the Company entered into a “cooperative
joint venture for licensed operation agreement relating to
Baoying Sewage Water Treatment project with Baoying County
Construction Bureau”. Pursuant to the agreement, the
Company will establish a joint venture, Baoying Capital Water
Co., Ltd., with Baoying Xianhe Sewage Water Treatment Plant,
the company under Baoying County Government of Jiangsu
Province. It will build and operate a sewage water treatment
plant and its auxiliary facilities with a treatment capacity of
25,000 cubic meter per day (in future: 50,000 cubic meter per
day) in Baoying County by way of BOT (Build-Operate-Transfer)
model (excluding pipe network). The total investment amount
of the first phase at the joint venture was approximately
Rmb93.4 million. The registered capital of Baoying Capital
Water Co. Ltd. will be Rmb38 million. The Company will
account for 70% of its registered capital while Xianhe Sewage
Water Treatment Plant will account for 30% of its registered
capital. The term of the licensed operation will be 25 years.

As at 23rd June 2005, the Company entered into the “Recycled
Water Supply and Sewage Water Treatment Infrastructural Project
Cooperative Agreement in Qujing Central City Area” with Qujing
Construction Bureau of Yunnan Province, Quijing Recycled Water
Supply and Sewage Water Treatment Corporation. Pursuant to
the agreement, the Company will jointly establish a limited liability
company (the “Project Company”) with Qujing Recycled Water
Supply and Sewage Water Treatment Corporation. It will operate
three water supply plants through TOT (Transfer-Operate-
Transfer) with a total daily production capacity of 200,000 tonnes,
and a sewage water treatment plant, with a daily production
capacity of 80,000 tonnes. Its daily production capacity will expand
to 160,000 tonnes after completion of phase two of the expansion
project. The term of the licensed operation will be 30 years. At
present, the projects were under the preparation by the Company.
The Project Company will sign the asset transfer agreement and
the water supply and sewage water treatment services agreement
with Qujing Recycled Water Supply and Sewage Water Treatment
Corporation once it is established.

During the reporting period, the Company participated in the
tender invitation of Hangzhou Qige Sewage Water Treatment
Plant. On 18th July 2005, the Company received the Notice of
Tender Invitation Assessment Result for Investors of Hangzhou
Qige Sewage Water Treatment Plant issued by Guidance
Committee of Tender Invitation for Hangzhou Qige Sewage
Water Treatment Plant Project (the “Hangzhou Project”). The
Tender Invitation Office listed the Company as the first
successful candidate for the bid. At present, the Hangzhou
Project was under further negotiation. The Company will
announce the result of such negotiation in due course.

The Company will issue announcements in relation to the above
agreements as and when required under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).
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The debt level, changes in credit facility and the cash repayment
arrangement for the future years

The credit position of the Company was good. It had a strong
repayment ability. The term of the A Share Convertible Bonds of
the Company was five years. If the Sale Back and redemption
conditions stated in the Prospectus are satisfied and the payment
for principal and interest were due, the principal and interests
to be paid to the holders of the A Share Convertible Bonds can
be paid by internal resources or borrowings from the bank.

8. Business plans for the second half of the year 2005

M

)

3

4

To ensure the completion of sewage water treatment projects

For the second half of 2005, the Company will strive to
complete the expansion work of Jizhuangzi Sewage Water
Treatment Plant and the commissioning of sludge area of
Xianyanglu Sewage Water Treatment Plant, and to ensure
upgrading the existing system of Jizhuangzi Sewage Water
Treatment Plant and completion of Beicang Sewage Water
Treatment Plant.

To coordinate and improve sewage water collection system

Following the completion of sewage water treatment projects
successively in 2005, the Company will further coordinate the
business management department, and improve the existing
sewage water collection system in the urban area of Tianjin. It
will expand the scope of sewage collection area.

To devote more efforts to the development sewage water
treatment projects

On the basis of market development for the first half of the
year, the Company will devote more efforts to finish the existing
negotiation. On the basis of existing sewage water treatment
projects, more efforts will be devoted to the development on
water projects in the peripheral areas. The Company will strive
to raise the profit contribution ratio of out-of town projects.

To enhance development of the internal control system

For the second half of the year, the Company will continue to
enhance and to further develop of the internal control system.
Based on experience gained from the first half of the year, it
will further improve the corporate governance structure and
internal risk control pursuant to the requirements of the relevant
stock exchanges and regulatory institutions.

As at 30th June 2005, the Company has no future plans for significant
investment save as disclosed above.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Liquidity and financial resources

There were no seasonal changes in the Group’s borrowings
requirement. As at 30th June 2005, there were no outstanding
borrowings and interests not repayable upon maturity. Details of
the bank borrowings of the Group are stated in note 12 of the notes
to the condensed consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30th June 2005 of the Accounts prepared in
accordance with HK GAAP of the Company.

In accordance with the A Share Accounting Report disclosed based
on the PRC accounting system, as at 30th June 2005, the gearing
ratio (total liabilities/total assets) was 53.58%.

Currency exchange risk

Main receivables and payables items of the Group are denominated in RMB. Therefore,
there is no material effect on the Group resulting from the fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates.

Employees and emolument policy

As at 30th June 2005, the Company had a total of 509 employees. The aggregate
remuneration paid to them was approximately Rmb12,350,000 during the reporting
period. The pay levels of the employees of the Group are commensurate with their
responsibilities, performance and contribution. The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group is decided by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualification
and competence.

Charges on assets

The Group did not create any charges on its principal assets as at 30th June 2005.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 30th June 2005.
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V1. Major Events

Conditions of corporate governance

During the reporting period, the Company strictly complied with
the requirements under the Company Law, Securities Law of the
PRC and the relevant rules and regulations of the CSRC and the
provisions under the Listing Rules and “Code on Corporate
Governance Practices” as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The Company devoted a lot of effort to improve its corporate
governance structure and established a contemporary corporate
system so as to standardise the operation of the Company. During
the reporting period, the Company amended its articles of association
(the “Articles of Association”), the Rules Governing the Procedures
of Operating the Board Meetings and the Rules Governing the
Procedures of Operating the Shareholders’ General Meetings of the
Company in accordance with the newly amended Rules Governing
the Listing of Shares on the SSE and the newly amended Listing
Rules. Pursuant to the circular of certain provisions on Strengthening
the Protection of the Rights and Interests of General Public
Shareholders, the Company established an investor’s relation
management system, which has been approved by the Board.

The Company authorises the secretary to the Board and securities affairs
representatives of the Company for disclosing information, handling
visit and enquiry from Shareholders and investors, and reporting the
relevant matters to the CSRC and the relevant stock exchanges in a
timely and accurate manner. The regular and special reports as disclosed
by the Company for the year truly, accurately, timely and completely
disclosed the information of the Company. During the reporting period,
the Company held the Board meetings and the Shareholders’ general
meetings in accordance with the requirements under the Articles of
Association and the Rules Governing the Procedures of Operating the
Board Meetings and the Rules Governing the Procedures of Operating
the Shareholder’s General Meetings. Apart from the absence of Mr.
Tan Zhaofu at the 33rd meeting of the Second Board, all nine Directors
attended all the Board meetings.

During the reporting period, the resolutions of the re-appointment of Mr. Gao
Zongze and Mr. Wang Xiangfei as the independent non-executive Directors
were considered and approved in the 2004 Annual General Meeting. The
independent non-executive Directors have not lodged an objection against
the proposals and other issues in Board meetings during the reporting period.

Adoption and implementation of the profit distribution plan during
the reporting period

In 2004 Annual General Meeting, the 2004 profit appropriation plan
was considered and approved: based on 1,330,000,000 Shares in
issue as at 31st December 2004, the Company made a payment of
Rmb0.10 (including tax) in cash per Share for holders of domestic
Shares and Rmb0.10 (including tax) (equivalent to HKD0.094
(including tax)) in cash per Share for holders of H Shares. The
Company published a dividend distribution announcement in the
PRC on 22nd July 2005. The entitlement registration date was 29th
April 2005. The distribution of dividends of domestic Shares and H
Shares completed on 3rd August 2005 and 4th July 2005,
respectively.
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The Company did not declare any profit distribution and the transfer
of welfare funds to share capital for the reporting period.

There was no litigation and arbitration which was material to the
Company that occurred during the reporting period or occurred in
the previous period and subsisting during the reporting period.

During the reporting period, there was no acquisition and disposal
of subsidiaries and associated corporations of the Company or any
major assets, or reorganisation of assets by the Company and its
subsidiaries that commenced in the previous period and subsisting
during the reporting period.

Significant connected transactions during the reporting period

1. Significant connected transactions relating to transfer of assets
and interests

(a) The Company ‘s sewage water treatment business was
operated in accordance with the Sewage Water Processing
Agreement. Pursuant to the Sewage Water Processing
Agreement, Dongjiao Sewage Water Treatment Plant and
Jizhuangzi Sewage Water Treatment Plant provided
sewage water treatment services to Tianjin Sewage
Company, and charged fees based on the formula
stipulated in the Sewage Water Processing Agreement.
Tianjin Sewage Company is a state-owned enterprise
established in the PRC and is within the control of Urban
Construction Bureau. The price calculation formula
ensures that the sewage water treatment business can
recover all the actual operational costs, including
depreciation and amortisation of the fixed assets
(excluding interests expenses and exchange difference).
It can generate a 15% return by calculating based on the
annual mean of the monthly average book value of the
relevant fixed assets (as defined in the Sewage Water
Processing Agreement) of the sewage water treatment
business. In addition, it can earn a price adjustment reward
when it can cut cost or when the process volume exceeds
the minimum processing volume as stipulated in the
Sewage Water Processing Agreement. During the
reporting period, the Company processed 70,730,000
cubic meters of sewage water. The Company derived a
sewage water processing service fees of approximately
Rmb136,520,000 in accordance with the Sewage Water
Processing Agreement.

(b) In accordance with the Construction Agreement, the
Company will assume the funds required for the Three
In-progress Construction Projects. Pursuant to the
Construction Agreement, during the construction period
of the Three In-progress Construction Projects, Tianjin
Sewage Company agreed to pay and the Company
agreed to receive the construction fees as the reward for
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the Company’s undertaking on the Three In-progress
Construction Projects. The total construction fees are the
sum of 23.7% of the arithmetic mean of the estimated
construction costs required in each year or period during
the construction period (from 24th September 2001 to
the date of completion and operation of the sewage water
treatment plants). Pursuant to the Construction
Agreement, Tianjin Sewage Company shall pay the
construction fees in advance based on the estimated
completion percentage for that month of each project.
At the end of each quarter, fee adjustments determined
by the independent surveyors or engineers based on the
completed project will be made. At the same time,
pursuant to the Construction Agreement, after the three
sewage water treatment plants commence operation, the
respective rights and obligations of the Company and
Tianjin Sewage Company will be governed by the Sewage
Water Processing Agreement. Pursuant to the
Construction Agreement, during the reporting period,
the construction work completed for the Three In-progress
Construction Projects during the agreed period amounted
to approximately Rmb180,380,000. An income of
approximately Rmb92,280,000 was derived based on the
Construction Agreement.

Significant contracts and status of implementation
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(6)

Custody

The Company did not provide any custodian during the
reporting period.

Subcontracting

The Company did not provide any subcontracting during the
reporting period.

Leasing

The Company did not have any leasing matters during the
reporting period.

Guarantee

The Company did not enter into any guarantee or had
guarantees that occurred in the previous period and subsisting
during the reporting period.

Trust arrangement

The Company did not make any trust arrangements during
the reporting period.

Other major contracts

The Company did not make other major contracts during the
reporting period.
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10.
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During the reporting period, the Shareholders who are interested in
5% or more of the total issued share capital of the Company had
neither published any matters of commitments in the designated
newspapers and websites that may be material nor had such
commitments that occurred in the previous period and subsisting
during the reporting period.

Appointment of the auditors of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company did not change its auditors.
The existing domestic auditor of the Company is
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Ltd., which has been re-appointed in 2004 Annual General Meeting.

The existing international auditor of the Company is
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, which has
been re-appointed in 2004 Annual General Meeting.

Other major events

(1) Statement related to the accounting mistake in the 2005 first
quarterly report of the Company for the three months ended
31st March 2005 (the “2005 First Quarterly Report”): For details
of the adjustment due to the accounting mistake in the 2005
First Quarterly Report, please refer to the announcements
published on the Shanghai Securities, Hong Kong Wen Wei Po
and The Standard dated 25th August 2005 and 31st August
2005.

(2) During the reporting period, there are no other major events
of the Company.

) ERRERAFERRAL%HIA LB EHITHR

BARBRIUG AL Mk LTS - o
TR A DA T AR (2 45 A B0 A 9R 5 BRE SE
BELMM L HBHARAVEERR - BB
RARELEEYEORRER -

(h) RGN ER BN

RARRNESFTMERAT - AR R REELE
ENERRETMELAER QA AERR AN
HNERTHE - E2004FEAFREARG L -
RAREEEELENERREHNEEME
RABARABNERNELE -

AR RETEBREMKESFHINEHMA
A RIHPBINETHNE - 2004 F EAFRR
Aet RRRBEZAETBRAFKES:T
B BT AR QB MEINERTHE -

(+) HitEEFH

(1) BIRARREHZE20059F3A31HI=18A
20058 ZF3h 4 ([2006EFHE) g
FIESEEMEMIT « BR2005F 5
TREPEHEHARNFARBR B2
RN 7 B 8 A200598 A 258 52005
FEAZTBE(LEEESFR ~ CUER)
{The Standard) EFIEH AL -

(2) ABERAARREHEMEKNSEIE -
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Index on material information disclosed

Events

3

(1) Announcement relating
to the unusual
price movements

(1 ERRRER
RERPHLE

(2)  Announcement relating to the
resolutions passed at the
12th Meeting of the Third Board

2) F=ZEEZE

BT-REFREDE

(3)  Announcement of the resolution
of the supervisory committee
of the Company

B) ARAEFERE

(4)  Announcement relating
to the resolutions
passed in the 13th
Meeting of the Third Board
(4) Z-EEZE
FT=REERELE

(5)  Announcement relating
to the resolutions passed in
the 4th Meeting of the
Third Supervisory Committee
(6 F-EEEE
BUREERELE

(6)  Notice of the 2004 Annual
General Meeting

6) ERBH2004FE
BERRASHRS

Names and

pages of the
publishing newspaper
HENHT

EBRIRE

page C of Shanghai Securities,
page B3 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page B27
of The Standard
(LBEFR)ICEIR -
(BAXIER) B3R -
(The Standard)B274%

page C12 of Shanghai Securities,
page B4 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page B37
of The Standard
(LBEHH)CI12MR -
(BAEXIER)BARR -
(The Standard)B37k%

page C12 of Shanghai Securities,
page B4 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page B37
of The Standard
(FBZEF®RCI2R -
(B8 XER) B4R -
(The Standard)B37H%

page 41 of Shanghai Securities,
page A16 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page B40
of The Standard
(FRZEFR MR
(BEXER)A16M -
(The Standard) B40kR

page C40 of Shanghai Securities,
page A16 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page B40
of The Standard
(LB&E% ) C4OfR -
(BEXER)AI60 -
(The Standard)B40iR

page C40 of Shanghai Securities,
page A16 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page B40
of The Standard
(F78 3 5 1) C40RR -
(FEXER) A6 -
(The Standard) B40KR

- EBRBEEANELSRS

Dates of publish

Flg B

25th January 2005

2005614250

22nd February 2005

200562/ 228

22nd February 2005

2005427221

15th April 2005

2005647158

15th April 2005

200564/ 150

15th April 2005

2005%4A 151

The Internet

websites where

the announcements

were published

and the website addresses
HENEHARE
RBEERE

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk

R 8 www.sse.com.cn »
F IR AT uhwww.hkex.com

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk

R BT B www.sse.com.cn »
B B I 2 AT A8 uhwww.hkex.com

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk
T B www.sse.com.cn »
FBEE R AT Uhwww.hkex.com

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk

FRETH www.sse.com.cn »
eI R AT uhwww.hkex.com

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk

R ETEwww.sse.com.cn »
BB I R AT A8 uhwww.hkex.com

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk
BT B www.sse.com.cn »
FB IR AT Uhwww.hkex.com

ARAXBRROERATDVO-_ZESZTIFEHHRE
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Events

3

(7)  Announcement in relation to a
Cooperative Framework
Agreement with Hongwu
Municipal Construction Bureau

(1 BREXHTERE

REQFERBENAE

(8)  Announcement on the resolutions
passed at the 2004 Annual
General Meeting and distribution
of final dividend of H Shares

8) 2004FEHEFREAE

N3
RELE

(9)  Announcement in relation to the
Change of Representative of China
Securities Co. Ltd., the Sponsor
for the Listing of the
A Share Convertible Bonds

9 BREEZFROHERLA
BAARRARERE
RERRANDE

(10)  Announcement relating
to 2005 Interest
Payment and Share
Conversion of A Share
Convertible Bonds

(100 HRAREE2005%
NEMBREEMAE

Names and

pages of the
publishing newspaper
iEEE S

ERREE

page C8 of Shanghai Securities,
page A19 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page B32
of The Standard
(FBE =] Com -
(BAXES) A9 -
(The Standard)B32H

page C10 of Shanghai Securities,
page A16 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page A33
of The Standard
(LBEH®)CI0R -
(BEXER)A16HR -
(The Standard) A33kR

page C of Shanghai Securities,
page B3 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page B24
of The Standard

(LBRERCER
(&% X ER) B3R »
(The Standard) B244x

page 16 of Shanghai Securities,
page B8 of Wen Wei Po in
Hong Kong and page B28
of The Standard

(EBEFR) 16k
(BB XER)BSIR -
(The Standard) B28Hx

Dates of publish

kAR

10th May 2005

2005653108

31st May 2005

2005654318

7th June 2005

200566478

24th June 2005

2005664248

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2005 Interim Report

The Internet

websites where

the announcements

were published

and the website addresses
HBNEBARL
RBRER

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk
BT B www.sse.com.cn
EHB IR AT uhwww.hkex.com

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk

R B www.sse.com.cn »
B B A2 P A8 Shwww.hkex.com

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk

2B S www.sse.com.cn
B BB 8 swww.hkex.com

The website of the SSE at www.sse.com.cn
and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk

A 48 shwww.sse.com.cn
& BB B Iwww.hkex.com



VII. Accounts Prepared in Accordancewith £ - REFEEHFUKEEDY

PRC GAAP

Balance Sheets
As at 30th June 2005

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and bank balances
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Prepayments to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Inventories

Total current assets

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Long-term equity investments

FIXED ASSETS AND
CONSTRUCTION IN
PROGRESS

Fixed assets - cost
Less: Accumulated
depreciation

Fixed assets - net book value
Construction in progress
Long-term prepaid expense

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes

053

BE
REBEE
L
FEMERTR
Hit R
BERER
FHER
FE 7

N L AW

nBBEAT

RAKRE
REBERE 8

EEEER
HEIR
BT BERE
o REHTE

ErEEZFE 9
FrIR 10

ROGHER

BEAL

BEERKE
R2005F6H30H
Group Company
& NG|
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2005 2004 2005 2004
REE 2RE REE gRET
#2005 20045 #2005 20045
6A30H 12A31H 6A830H 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
1,263,970 1,341,999 1,163,558 1,259,619
479,047 393,802 468,086 391,182
4,286 2,774 3,639 1,090
1,715 118,453 1,217 115,815
419 2,728 350 2,450
7,120 5,800 1,823 1,767
1,756,557 1,865,556 1,638,673 1,771,923
6,000 6,000 165,630 137,243
2,188,905 1,876,042 1,901,632 1,733,235
(614,841) (582,326) (596,746) (572,326)
1,574,064 1,293,716 1,304,886 1,160,909
1,401,247 1,461,338 1,401,114 1,319,903
2,975,311 2,755,054 2,706,000 2,480,812
27,688 31,148 27,688 31,148
4,765,556 4,657,758 4,537,991 4,421,126

ARAXBRROERATDVO-_ZESZTIFEHHRE
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LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term loans
Accounts payable
Advances from customers
Welfare payable
Dividend payable
Bond interest payable
Taxes payable
Other payables
Accrued expenses
Portion of convertible bond
due within one year
Portion of long-term loans due
within one year

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term loans
Convertible bonds
Specific payables
Other long-term payables

Total long-term liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
MINORITY INTERESTS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital
Capital reserve fund
General reserves
Including:
Statutory common reserve
Statutory provident fund
Undistributed profits

Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these accounts.

Ma Bai Yu

Company Representative
=S

NAlEEA

BER
R
RBRE
AR
FERARR
YRR
EfI R 2
FEAI AR A
FERHEZFIE
JER &
Htb MR
BRER
—FRIIH
B ES
—EREI
REMER

REBBEAT

REGE
REMER
FERES
EIREMHR
HihRHRE

REBEAT
afEast
YRR

RR R

e

BRI

VR YN

He
EEBBRER
N
ROBEHE

REEZ AR

REA
RRER A

Gu Qi Feng

Person in charge of accounting function

R Rl i

Notes

3

1
12
13
14
15
16
18

17

17
18
19

20
21
21

22

FEEMIIFHNREA

Group Company
aff AF

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2005 2004 2005 2004
REE 2REH REE 2B
H2005F 20045 H2005% 20045
6830H 12A31H 68308 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
210,000 115,000 200,000 100,000
2,485 8,408 1,952 2,153
43,499 52,700 43,475 52,700
9,136 7,999 8,677 7,676
100,739 1,830 100,739 1,830
28,080 14,040 28,080 14,040
28,055 94,252 27,952 92,588
153,436 156,584 95,389 101,494
6,391 7,882 5,175 7,882
823,902 — 823,902 —
55,000 50,000 55,000 50,000
1,460,723 508,695 1,390,341 430,363
625,000 605,000 575,000 555,000
376,098 1,200,000 376,098 1,200,000
81,040 81,307 — —
10,612 10,412 — —
1,092,750 1,896,719 951,098 1,755,000
2,553,473 2,405,414 2,341,439 2,185,363
15,531 16,581 — —
1,330,000 1,330,000 1,330,000 1,330,000
69,289 69,289 69,289 69,289
174,349 174,349 174,349 174,349
116,232 116,232 116,232 116,232
58,117 58,117 58,117 58,117
622,914 662,125 622,914 662,125
2,196,552 2,235,763 2,196,552 2,235,763
4,765,556 4,657,758 4,537,991 4,421,126

RREH

EitEPTREA
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EHEABRMIRLEHEROARTED -

Chen Yin Xing
Person in charge of accounting department



Income Statements

For the six months ended 30th June 2005

Income from principal
operations
Less: Cost for principal operations
Business tax and surcharges

Profit from principal
operations
Add: Profit from other operations
Less: Administrative expenses
Financial expenses - net

Operating profit

Less: Investment (loss)/income
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

Total profit
Less: Income tax

Minority interests

Net profit

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these accounts.

Ma Bai Yu

Company Representative
FHE

AFEEA

Notes
e
TEEBRA
23
B EEEBKA 23

TEEBHE MM 23
TEEBNE

in: BB
o EEER
BHER 24

EE )]

W RE (BX) ke 25
o EEIMEA

o EEI

GilbEEE

o FTSH 2(s)

bElYEd

Gu Qi Feng

Person in charge of accounting function

8RR i
TEEMTIFNEAA

FEx

# £2005%6 5305 1L 618 A
Group Company
& NG|

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months Six months Six months
Ended 30th Ended 30th Ended 30th Ended 30th
June 2005 June 2004 June 2005 June 2004
REEG REEG REE RBE
B 220055 B Z2004F B 220055 B Z2004F

64308 6A30H 6A30H 6A30H

1618 A 1618 A 1618 A 1618 A
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARBTE  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT
276,457 333,837 261,442 322,953
(78,091) (64,394) (62,560) (58,508)
(14,689) (17,785) (14,379) (17,785)
183,677 251,658 184,503 246,660
8,140 1,402 5,912 118
(28,855) (27,310) (23,730) (24,173)
(21,289) (7,844) (19,488) (7,899)
141,673 217,906 147,197 214,706

— — (4,862) 2,170

90 80 90 80
47) (3,300) 47) (3,300)
141,716 214,686 142,378 213,656
(48,977) (69,518) (48,589) (69,518)
1,050 (1,030) — —
93,789 144,138 93,789 144,138

BRIRE

it AFIREA

ENERBRNERTEHB/RNARTD -

Chen Yin Xing
Person in charge of accounting department
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Profit Appropriation Statements
For the six months ended 30th June 2005

Net profit
Add: Undistributed profits at
beginning of the year

Profits available for
appropriation
Less: Transfer to statutory
common reserve
Transfer to statutory
provident fund

Profit attributable to
shareholders
Less: Dividend payable

Undistributed profits
at the end of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these accounts.

Ma Bai Yu

Company Representative
FRE

AAEAA

FAE
e EIRR 2 B A

A B B U
B RBUEE
REUEE
DNHE
AR
2 EHIFE
A E AR AR

MR AR 2 B

Gu Qi Feng

Notes

653

21(b)

21(b)

22

FEoEx

HZE2005F6A30H 1F61EA
Group Company
& NG|

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months Six months Six months
Ended 30th Ended 30th Ended 30th Ended 30th
June 2005 June 2004 June 2005 June 2004
REGHET REGHET REGET REET

B 220055 B 220045 H 220055 B 220045
6A30AH 6A830H 6A30H 6A830H
68 A L6 A 68 A 16 A
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
93,789 144,138 93,789 144,138
662,125 493,808 662,125 493,808
755,914 637,946 755,914 637,946
755,914 637,946 755,914 637,946
(133,000) (106,400) (133,000) (106,400)
622,914 531,546 622,914 531,546

Person in charge of accounting function

B Ry i

FEEMIENREA

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited 4 2005 Interim Report

Chen Yin Xing

EHEABRNERTSHERROARED

Person in charge of accounting department
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Cash Flow Statements

For the six months ended 30th June 2005

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash inflows:
Cash received from sales of goods

and rendering of services

Other cash received relating to operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash outflows:

Cash paid for goods and services

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Taxes paid

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash inflows:

Cash received from restricted bank deposits
Other cash received from investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash outflows:

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash paid to invest in subsidiary companies
Restricted bank deposits

Sub-total of cash outflows
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash inflows:
Cash received from borrowings
Sub-total of cash inflows
Cash outflows:
Cash repayments of amounts borrowed
Cash payments for distribution

of dividends or profits
Cash payments for interest expenses
Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash

BERER

B Z2005%630H 1-61E A
Group Company
Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months
Ended 30th Ended 30th
June 2005 June 2005
&t NG|
RGBS RGBS
HE2005% H E2005%
64308 64308
1E6{E A 1618 A
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARBTF T ARBTF T
RETHEENRESRE
WEMA
RERBKEINES
184,239 175,314
B E B BB MR & 6,722 6,722
BERADET 190,961 182,036
Bamd:
BERG  EXSBINORE (43,116) (30,958)
STREBIARABIZNNRE (20,696) (19,539)
SR EIERE (129,893) (127,604)
TAMEMELEESEENR S (20,367) (16,633)
RBE&ERmb /et (214,072) (194,734)
RETHEENRERETFE (23,111) (12,698)
BRETBHELENESRE
BWEMA
U Bl §) R ERITIF X 403,332 403,332
R E M BT EES B ENR® 5,561 5,252
BERANET 408,893 408,584
e
BREETEE  BREEMN
HEMRHABEMZ MRS (124,873) (126,866)
MR EMEIMIRE — (33,250)
ZERHIERITIFR (22,000) (22,000)
BEeMmEet (146,873) (182,116)
REZHELENEESREFHE 262,020 226,468
EETHELENRESRE
WEMA
BT MR 250,000 250,000
BEMADNE 250,000 250,000
Wem
BEREBMZNHIRE (130,000) (125,000)
pal i o e N
XHERE (34,092) (34,092)
ERMEMMZHIRE (21,514) (19,407)
BERmE /DT (185,606) (178,499)
EETHELENRESRERE 64,394 71,501
e FILNE 303,303 285,271

ARAXBRROERATDVO-_ZESZTIFEHHRE
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Supplementary Information

mEEH

(i) Reconciliation of net profit to net
cash flows from operating activities

(i)

Net profit
Add/(Less):
Minority interests

Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets

Finance expenses — net
Loss on investments
Increase in inventories

Increase in operating receivables
Decrease in operating payables

Net cash flows from operating activities

Net increase in cash
Cash at end of the year

Less: Cash at beginning of the year

Net increase in cash

Ma Bai Yu

Company Representative
EBE

ALTE=B-PN

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these accounts.

Gu Qi Feng

HERERAGARE
FENERESRE
FFE

m/ G

DY REE
EEEENE R

WS ER R

BBk

FE/mIEM

T e e TE B A93E 0

4o\ FE S T B B9

REFPELNRERETE

BREFRDER
R e IIRGE
R R

R FE N

Person in charge of accounting function

B Rk i

TEEMIENREEA
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Group
Unaudited
Six months
Ended 30th
2005

a6
REEE
HZ20055
6H30H
t6fE A
Rmb’000
AREFT

93,789

(1,050)
32,515
21,289
(1,320)
(95,953)
(72,381)

(23,111)
1,221,970
(918,667)

303,303

Chen Yin Xing
Person in charge of accounting department

BRIEEH

2 EFIEEA

Company
Unaudited
Six months
Ended 30th
2005

AT
REEG
HZ20055
6H30H
IF6{@E A
Rmb’000
ARETF T

93,789

24,420
19,488
4,862
(56)
(88,676)
(66,525)

(12,698)
1,121,558
(836,287)

285,271

EHEABRNERTEHEROARED



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
For the six months ended 30th June 2005

1 COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established on 8th June 1993 in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") as a joint stock limited company. The
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) include
sewage water processing, construction of sewage water processing
plants, production of recycled water, construction materials and
operation of road toll stations.

The operation mode of the Group’s principal activities is described
below:

(a) Sewage water processing

Pursuant to relevant agreements (“Water Processing
Agreements”), the Group currently provides sewage water

SR HRRMEE
# Z200596H30A 1F618 A

1 RABNREEER

FERAIERERBROGAERAR ([A28]) 2R
1993F6ASHIEFREARFEME ([FE]) T
MERZOBRDERAR - KRR REFAA
([AEE]BENEEEBBIESKEERT
IKERIR R AR R - KFIEM A 2 R R
BUh¥ -

UTRAREEEXBHHLERA

(a) FKREEEHK

REBEREGHE ([OFKEEZRFEWH
#Z01)  AEEBBUT =ZFK5KEEM

processing services via three plants as follows: RS KEIERT -
Plant Location Contract Date Customer
B CACE HEEE EF
Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin 10th October 2000 TSC
R#E KET 2000108108 BEK AT
Dong Jiao, Tianjin 10th October 2000 TSC
K2 BRI 2000108108 BEK AT
Guizhou 16th September 2004 GCAB
M 2004497 16H BESWER
Legend: BB H AR
TSC - Tianjin Sewage Company is a state owned enterprise PKRA — REMEKAGZER
under supervisory control of TMEB. BRIHBEAERE I
ERETHBDEE
TMEB - Tianjin Municipal Engineering Bureau. RETEBE — RETHBRIRER
GCAB - Guiyang City Administration Bureau EGHER — BEBMEMEER

The principal terms of the pricing formula as set out in the
relevant contracts are briefly summarised below:

TSC:

The Group will have full recovery of actual operating costs,
including depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets,
excluding interest expenses and foreign exchange gains or
losses and at minimum:

(i) earn areturn of 15% per annum of the average balance
of the monthly net book value of fixed assets (as defined
in the agreement) of the plants; and

(i)  incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving
and/or when actual processing volume exceeds the
minimum processing volume stipulated in the agreement.

HEmHTANETZHEARN WM T A :

7N

AREEZERBHEERNOLERAN - B1EE
EEENTENREE ETEENEHAX

MEREZ &K

() WEURSKEBEBHEEETEE
(EERHH) WEAFHREFE
WEEFHBENIE%E IR - S
&

(i) ESHERAREETEREESHRA
WER TN RIEEIE SN EENE
BHAE-
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GCAB:

Initial price is Rmb0.84 per cubic meter for the first two years,
thereafter

(i) the price after two years will be determined by a pricing
formula which will effectively allow to full recovery of the
actual business costs, including operating cost,
depreciation, income tax and a return of 8% on net assets
of the plant; and

(ii)  the price might be revised after considering the factors
of renovation of equipment, additional investment, power
and energy and labour force etc.

(b) Construction of sewage water processing plants

Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”)
between the Company and TSC on 24th September 2001,
the Company is to provide construction services to TSC in
respect of three plants detailed below:

EBWER

BT AARE0.847T, /3L KBRS
TERBIMFHSKEIERBESE - Filt

(i) —FHRRETRBIBEPIAN
AEAANEENGHKERS - FHEAK
AR KREXBE2EREERN
RERE - BIEETRA  HHE -
BT EBRHFEERR : AR

(i) PARFEAREBRERESE -
BERERERS N - BB HERE
RFAEER -

(b) BREEBBRERFEY

RIEA QA 200149 A24 A EHEKA A
FAIWCHKERE (BRE) EEIRKER
2 ([ERWEBHZ]D)  AQFAAEPEKRD
AR AT = @5 KEE AR

Xian Yang Lu Ji Zhuang Zi Bei Cang Total
i 3% REF L&
EREER EKEER EREER
BREE B2EE BREE @it
Designed capacity (M3/day) BRENEREEE (MHX) 450,000 280,000 100,000 830,000
Estimated date of completion SRR End 2005 End 2005 End 2005
2005 FR 2005 FR 2005 FR
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
ARKBET AEBBEET ARKBET AEBBEET
Total construction BRAN
costs to completion BEAAK 1,199 1,055 366 2,620
Total construction fees ERE 589 317 264 1,170
Construction fees recognised BHRRE
by the Company BB
- up to 31st December 2004 —R2004F12A31H 302 209 133 644
- up to 30th June 2005 —H2005F6 A30H 364 220 152 736
- for period to 30th June 2005 — 200651 A%6R 62 1 19 92
% of completion of construction ERMIEEEALL (MERUEE)
- as at 31st December 2004 —R 2004512 A31H 51% 66% 50%
- as at 30th June 2005 —7 20056 A30 A 59% 70% 59%

note: Costs and fees are estimated numbers set out in the contracts and
will be adjusted on completion of the plants. Furthermore, the
certified construction costs include the fixed assets funded by the
foreign loans, as discussed later in this Note.
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The principal terms of the said contract are summarised below:

(i) afeewill be paid by TSC during the period of constructing
the plants as a reward to remunerate the Company for
accepting the responsibility to construct the sewage
plants. The aggregate construction fees payable to the
Company for the construction of these three plants
amount to approximately Rmb1,170 million.

(i) fee is payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis
according to the percentage of completion of the
respective construction projects estimated by the
Company. The percentage of completion of each project
will be adjusted on a quarterly basis according to the
certifications issued by qualified independent surveyors
or engineers; and

(iii) the Company is also responsible for the funding of the
construction cost of these plants.

Further pursuant to the agreement upon the commencement
of operation of the three sewage water processing plants, the
rights and obligations between the Company and TSC will
follow the terms as specified in the Water Processing Agreement
as applicable to the Tianjin plants (Note1(a));

Also, on 24th September 2001, pursuant to respective
agreements (“Transfer Agreements”), the Company would
acquire the above three plants from TSC and would be
responsible for the construction and management of the
remaining uncompleted portion of the plants. The transfers
were deemed completed on 30th October 2002.

On 25th August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement
with TSC (“Co-operative Agreement”) whereby:

(i) the Company would be responsible for the overall
execution of the construction of the three plants;

(i) TSC would be responsible for making use of the original
loans from two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to
fund certain fixed assets used in the plants;

(i) TSC would transfer to the Company these Foreign Loans
funded fixed assets after their installation and the issuance
of verification reports, at their carrying value;

(iv) the Company would be responsible for the repairs and
maintenance of these fixed assets during the construction
period; and

(v) the construction fee charged by the Company pursuant
to the above mentioned Construction Agreement, would
include the cost of these fixed assets as the base.
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(c) Road toll stations

Prior to 2003, the Company owned the right to set up toll
stations at the junctions between the city roads of Tianjin and
expressways leading to the city, and to collect tolls generally
from non-Tianjin registered motor vehicles passing these toll
stations for a term expiring on 28th February 2029.

During 2003, following the reform of the public transportation
network, the Tianjin Municipal Government decided to relocate
certain toll stations, including those of the Company, to the
boundary of the interstate highways surrounding Tianjin. The
collection of tolls from non-Tianjin registered vehicles will be
centralised at a Tianjin Toll Collection Office (“Toll Collection
Office”) set up by TMEB. As a result, the Company’s toll stations
were demolished since 31st May 2003 and TMEB agreed to
compensate the Company as follows:

(i) aone-off cash compensation by TMEB equivalent to the
net book value of the assets of the demolished toll stations
as at 30th June 2003 of about Rmb33 million.

(i) compensation for loss in revenue, during the period from
31st May 2003 to the date of completion of construction
of the new toll stations(mentioned in following
paragraph), equivalent to the revenue received in the
same period of last year of about Rmb5.5 million net of
expenses.

(iii) Company was granted the collection right of six new toll
stations from 1st July 2003 to 28th February 2029.
However, the Company is not allowed to transfer, lease
or pledge the right to other parties without TMEB’s
consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll
Collection Agreement”) with Toll Collection Office on 24th
July 2003 with following principal terms:

i)  the Company has engaged the Toll Collection Office to
collect the tolls at the six new toll stations on its behalf
for which it will pay a management fee;

i) the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from
the six new stations for the corresponding period/year,
subject to minimum toll fee for each period/year based
on the forecast traffic flow and tolls for the corresponding
period/year as stipulated in a traffic flow and tolls forecast
report for the six new toll stations issued by a professional
consulting company in July 2003; and

iii)  Any shortfall to the Company between actual and the
agreed minimum will be compensated to the Company
by the Toll Collection Office.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(a) Basis of preparation

The Company has prepared the accounts based on the
Accounting Standards and the Accounting System for Business

2 EBFEX - SFGANSHETRRNG
RE*
B MRNEREE

FETHEARRPEARLMEBE KRB
MEREFERFMCEE S HIR) WRE

(a)

Enterprises promulgated by the Central Government of the wmE o
People’s Republic of China.

(b) Financial year (b) BFEE
The financial year is from Tst January to 31st December of BHNFEAABIA1AE12A31HIE -
each calendar year. These accounts represent the interim BRI MR R2005F EHFH 0 AR
accounts of the year 2005 and therefore are prepared only up WEZEGHAI0ALE °
to the period ended 30th June.

(¢) Reporting currency (c) REERAMLHE
The reporting currency is Renminbi (“Rmb”) and amounts in NARBREEAMLE - KEFFREANE
the accounts are stated to the nearest thousand of Rmb. HeBMEMRBARETT -

(d) Basis of accounting (d) TREBMFAERA
The accrual concept is adopted as basis of accounting. Unless NS AN RCRER - RIEFRIA
for special circumstance, assets are initially recorded at their o BERBISRIZERBAAR - 2k
acquired costs, less provision for impairment as necessary. ‘rELEERE  AFHEEERNEERE

i o

(e) Cash (e) B&
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash comprises cash FIRRBRERERPHNRCEREFRS
in hand and deposits repayable on demand. K AT BER AR S TR ERITF R ©

(f) Receivables and provision for bad debts (f) EBUREBERERES

Receivables comprise trade and other receivables.

The Group adopts the provision method to account for

potential doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts is made after the evaluation of the !
recoverability of receivables. When there is evidence that L5
receivables are not recoverable, such as in the event that the
entity is deregistered, bankrupt, has negative assets and
insufficient working capital etc., the corresponding receivables
are recognised as bad debts and net off the corresponding

amounts of provision for doubtful debts.
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(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories comprise of raw materials , work in process, finished
goods, spare parts and consumables.

Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and spare parts and consumables
are stated at cost less provision for obsolescence.

Cost is determined on weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an allocation of all production overheads
incurred based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable
value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds
less estimated distribution and selling expenses.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments are equity investments held for
more than one year.

Cost of long-term equity investments are accounted for based
on the actual amounts paid. The Company adopts the equity
method to account for the invested entities in which the
Company holds 20% or more of the voting share capital, or
holds less than 20% of the voting share capital but has
significant influence on the entities’ operating decisions. The
Company adopts the cost method to account for the invested
entities in which the Company holds 20% or less of the voting
share capital, or holds more than 20% of the voting share
capital but has no significant influence on the entities’ operating
decisions.

The Company adopts the equity method to account for its
subsidiary in the accounts of the Company. A subsidiary is an
enterprise in which the Company holds directly or indirectly
more than 50% of the voting share capital, has the power of
decision making on the financing and operating strategies of
the enterprise and accordingly is able to obtain benefits from
its operating activities.

Provision for permanent diminution in value of long-term equity
investment is made in the cases where there is a continuing
diminution in the value of long-term equity investments or
there is deterioration in the operating results of the invested
company and such diminution in value is not expected to be
reversible in the foreseeable future.
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(i) Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation/
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation of land use rights, other than those in relation to
the toll stations business, is calculated to write off their cost,
on a straight line basis over the period of land use rights of 50
years.

Depreciation of the road and amortisation of land use rights in
relation to the toll stations business are calculated to write off
their cost on a units-of-usage basis whereby the depreciation
and amortisation are provided based on the share of actual
traffic volume for a particular period over the projected total
traffic volume throughout the period of 30 years for which the
right to operate the road is granted. The projected total traffic
volume throughout the operating periods of the road will be
reviewed regularly. If considered appropriate, independent
professional traffic studies will be obtained. Appropriate
adjustments will be made should there be a material change
in the projected total traffic volume.

Depreciation of leasehold buildings and structures is calculated
to write off their cost, on a straight line basis over the unexpired
periods of their expected useful lives, whichever is the shorter.
The periods adopted for depreciation range from 10 to 50
years.

Other tangible fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient
to write off the cost of the assets, less estimated residual value,
over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Plant and machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles and others

10-40 years
5-15 years

Major costs incurred in restoring fixed assets to their normal
working condition are charged to the profit and loss account.
The expenses relating to improvements of fixed assets are
capitalised and amortised over their expected useful lives.

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that the fixed assets are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss
account.
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(k)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress (“CIP”) represents fixed assets under
construction or being installed and is stated at cost. Cost
comprises original cost of plant and equipment, installation,
construction and other direct costs which include interest cost
on specific borrowings used to finance the capital assets, prior
to the date of reaching the expected usable condition.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when
the asset has been substantially completed and reaches the
expected usable condition.

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that the construction in progress is impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Borrowing costs

Except the issuance expense (note(n)) of convertible bonds,
interest cost, ancillary costs, and exchange differences incurred
in connection with specific borrowings obtained for the
acquisition or construction of fixed assets are capitalised as
costs of the assets beginning when the capital expenditures
and borrowing costs have been incurred and the activities to
enable the assets to reach their expected usable condition have
commenced. The capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
the construction in progress has reached the asset’s expected
usable condition. Borrowing costs incurred thereafter are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

In each capitalisation period, the amount of interest cost
included in the borrowing costs to be capitalised should be
determined according to the weighted average amount of
accumulated expenditures incurred for the acquisition or
construction of a fixed asset up to the end of the current period
and the weighted average interest rate of related borrowings,
not exceeding the interest cost of the specific borrowings
actually incurred during the current period. Borrowing costs
such as exchange differences and significant ancillary costs in
connection with specific borrowings in foreign currency are
capitalised based on actual amount in the period in which they
are incurred.

Borrowing costs in connection with other borrowings are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
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V)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(D)

Repair and maintenance expenses

Repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the profit
and loss account as incurred.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses are charged to the profit
and loss account as incurred.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds (“the bonds”) are classified as liabilities and
are stated at principal amount.

The difference between issuing cost of the bonds and the
interest income derived during the issuing period is amortised
over the bonds’ issue period on a straight line basis. Interest
expense for the bonds is accrued periodically. Interest and
issuance cost are capitalized or expensed according to the
purpose/use of the issuance proceeds. Upon conversion into
the Company’s share, the converted quantity of share times
par value is recognized as share capital whilst difference
between share capital converted and par value of the bonds is
recorded in capital surplus.

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in the employee pension scheme of
the Tianjin Municipal Government whereby the Group is to
make an annual contribution equivalent to 20% of its annual
payroll costs and the Tianjin Municipal Government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of existing and
future retired employees of the Group. The Group’s
contributions under the scheme are charged to the profit and
loss account as incurred.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current rate of
taxation, using the liability method, in respect of timing
differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes
and profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that a liability
or an asset is expected to be payable or receivable in the
foreseeable future.
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(q) Foreign currency translation

(r)

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Rmb at the exchange rates stipulated by the People’s Bank
of China prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are translated into Rmb at the exchange rates
stipulated by the People’s Bank of China at the balance sheet
date.

Except for the exchange differences attributable to specific
foreign currency borrowings and arising during the period of
acquisition and construction of fixed assets are capitalised, all
other exchange differences arising are taken to the profit and
loss account.

Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue from sewage water processing services is
recognised when services are rendered. Revenue from
sewage water processing plants construction services is
calculated based on the percentage of completion during
the construction period of the respective sewage water
processing plants. The percentage of completion is
determined with reference to the certification of qualified
independent surveyors or engineers in the People’s
Republic of China.

(i) Toll fee income is recognised on a receipt basis.

(iii) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
are transferred to the buyer, the Group retains neither
continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold, and it is probable that the economic benefit
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group
and the relevant revenue and costs can be measured
reliably.

(iv) Revenue from water recycling processing services is
recognised when services are rendered.

(v) Interest income is calculated based on the period of the
principal amounts deposited and the effective interest
rates.
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Q)

(u)

Taxation

(i) Income tax

Corporate income tax is accounted for using the tax
liability method under the effective tax method. The tax
rate is 33% of taxable income.

(ii)  Business tax

The business tax rate is 5% of gross service income.

(i) Value added tax

The value added tax (VAT) payable is calculated as 17%
of taxable sales, net of deductible input VAT.

(iv) Government surcharges

Government surcharges comprise of city construction tax
and education surcharge, calculated respectively at the
tax rate of 7% and 3% of the amount of business tax or
value added tax.

Related parties

Related parties refer to state-owned companies or other
companies under the supervisory control of TMEB (note 27).

Basis of preparation of consolidated accounts

The consolidated accounts, including the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiary, are prepared in accordance with
Cai Kuai Zi (1995) No. 11 “Temporary Regulations for
Preparation of Consolidated Accounts” issued by the Ministry
of Finance.

From the date of obtaining the effective control on a subsidiary,
the Company begins to consolidate the subsidiary’s revenue,
cost, profit, and will cease the consolidation from the date of
losing effective control. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances are eliminated in the consolidated
accounts. Minority interests represent the portion of the equity
interests of the subsidiaries which does not belong to the Group.

When there is inconsistency in accounting policies between
the subsidiaries and the Company, and when the discrepancies
arising from the inconsistency have a material impact on the
consolidated accounts, they will be adjusted according to the
Company’s accounting policies.

(s)

(t)

(u)

BIE

(1 ArEH

FSTE T RIETARNIRTE
SEDEATHABEE > HER/33% -

(2) X
REBBANBE%IREER -

(3) HEEH

R G RS B 17 % 31
% 50 Ao BFHE AT A0 T A 44 69 85 58
shag o

(4)  EFHT 0

B N B 4R W T R A B
me SRREERBRIEEREN
7% K 3%=HIE °

)yl

BB O EIRETRBEENEA RS
B AR (FRHEE27) °

EHERBROERS Z

AHEHRERBEARRRNAAGHEER
HFRABIMNEEHRE  ZREFEARHK
B B I B B 2 52 (1996) 11557 3L R 7 B
BAEMEHBRERMETHRE) MEERTE

GTE

EMEFRARNERENEZAE A2
AR A S A AR RO WA~ PR - FI
MABB  HRKERZGIEZBREEFLE
Bff c ARBMPASHBENFRRZ
RMAEAERBBERIZER HETH
RREECD TUEE - EAHETHE
o DEBRREREMASHEBEN TR
BIMPT A E ST BN AEE AR

B e

EMASHEBENTFRAREARRRRANES
BEN—% ARBEENZERHEHRERY

SRAH -
K o
1E

BARBRITOEFBE T IUAH

ARAXBRROERATDVO-_ZESZTIFEHHRE

49



50

3  CASH AND BANK BALANCES

3 E%ES

Group Company
&6 AT
3oth June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2005 2004 2005 2004
#2005 F #2004 F #2005 F #2004 F
6 A30H 12A31H 6 A30H 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARBETFT ARBEFT ARBETFT ARBETFT
Cash on hand e 52 151 28 8
Cash in bank RITFER 1,221,918 1,318,516 1,121,530 1,236,279
Including He:
-Special funds for construction HETEZAZ:
in progress (note (a)) (it#(a) 116,970 129,145 116,912 128,887 |
Other cash balances HihE%ES
(note (b)) (X% (b)) 42,000 23,332 42,000 23,332
1,263,970 1,341,999 1,163,558 1,259,619
(@) The special funds for construction in progress represent the (a) ERIRBERAERR/TKEERERRK

(b)

unutilised balances of the special loan accounts for sewage
water processing projects and Tianjin Ji Zhuang Zi Sewage
Water Recycle Project.

As at 30th June 2005, included in other cash balances was an
deposit of Rmb20,000,000 (2004: Rmb20,000,000) in
Construction Bank of China, Tianjin Branch held as guarantee
for the issuance of the Company’s convertible bonds. The
remaining balance of Rmb22,000,000 (2004: Rmb3,331,999)
represented deposit for project bid. These amounts have been
excluded from cash balance at the year end for the purpose of
cash flow statement.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash comprises the

R EFSKEIAIRER ZFERER
P AR ERIRITERIRER

M2005F6A30H @ HMERESBER
NEFHARFRBIRERZRBITREMDITIES
ZAITARARIREATERERERORKR
25 AR #20,000,0007T (20044 :
20,000,0007T) : E&FIAAHEE IR R
B ERHEET ARE22,000,0007T (2004
% :3,331,9997T) c EtEBESER
FERERERPTMEAREIIR -

JIRRBAEZRERNASEIE

following:
Group Company
i R

30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December

2005 2004 2005 2004

#2005 F #2004 7 2005 & #2004

6 HA30H 12A31H 6 A30H 12A31H

Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

ARBTT ~ ARETT ~ AREFT  ARETX

Cash and bank balances EBEe 1,263,970 1,341,999 1,163,558 1,259,619
Less: Deposit with non bank institution &, : 3E8RTT BUEETER — (400,000) — (400,000)
Restricted bank deposits ZRR HIMERITER (42,000) (23,332) (42,000) (23,332)
Cash shown on the cash flow statement 7| m"RIREREXRARE 1,221,970 918,667 1,121,558 836,287
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4  TRADE RECEIVABLES

Ageing analysis of trade FEWER TR R &
receivable is as follows: RREAZREEATIT -
Within 1 year 1 F AR
Between 1 and 2 years 1—2%
Net accounts receivable FEY AR FEE

Details of the trade receivable JrE Ui B 3k BE 4

are set out as follows: W
Due from GCAB e EZHE B
-Revenue from sewage
water processing services —EKERIEYA
Due from TSC JENHEK A A
-Revenue from sewage water
processing services —EKERIEYA

-Revenue from sewage
water processing
plants construction services — — 5/KERIZBGER B WA
Due from Toll Collection Office  FEUER U i
-Tolls —EHHBITERA
Others Hith

Although TSC has not been settling its debts in accordance with the
terms of the Construction Agreement (Note 1(b)). The Directors
believe all amounts due from TSC will be fully recoverable in due

course.

As at 30th June 2005, there was no accounts receivable from any of
the Company’s shareholders who hold 5% or more of voting shares.

5 OTHER RECEIVABLES

The aging of the other receivables as at 30th June 2005 for both the

Group and the Company is within one year.

As at 30th June 2005, there were no other receivables from any of
the Company’s shareholders who hold 5% or more of voting shares.

4 BYERR

Group
apt
3oth June 31st December
2005 2004

2005 & #2004 &
6H30H 12B831H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARBTFT ARBTFIT

Company
AT

30th June 31st December
2005 2004
#2005 F #2004 F
6 H30H 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARBEFT ARETFT

406,236 380,484 395,275 377,864
72,811 13,318 72,811 13,318
479,047 393,802 468,086 391,182
7,621 1,981 — —
127,142 133,541 127,142 133,451
321,538 238,484 321,538 238,484
19,406 19,157 19,406 19,157
3,340 639 — _
479,047 393,802 468,086 391,182

5 HtEWRK

BEHR AR RIZIBER K EHHE ()R ER
BXMERE  EFMDBERKIFKARN
FIARKE R 2 EKE o

HIRE YRR P B AR RAE% (B6%) A £
TORMERAD VB R A R K

& B R AR 2005496 830 H A E 4 fE U R ER
BIEIEAR -

HIRE A B YR ERE AR TF5% (B5%) A
ERREBROEBRRAHRK -
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6 PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS 6 FEMFERRX

Group Company
i YN
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2005 2004 2005 2004
720055 720045 720055 120045
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

ARETIT ARBTT ARETT ARKETT

Prepayment for TARTHEE R
purchase of a building — 115,411 — 115,411
Others Hith 1,715 3,042 1217 404
1,715 118,453 1,217 115,815
The 2004 prepayment for purchase of a building is in respect of an 2004 FENBER /AR BBE —EH E
acquisition of the Company’s current office premises. In 2005, the BT TR SR © 2005%F - FESEER FARAF]E
Company accrued the balance of Rmb41 million and the total cost RTANERBTBRBEOARK410087T - B
of about Rmb156 million was transferred to fixed assets (Note 9). BERAELTHARE16618TT  RAFEE—
HEABEEE FRMF -
As at 30th June 2005, there were no prepayment to any of the HIRFEM R EFEARLRGFS5% (B5%) A L
Company’s shareholders which hold 5% or more of voting shares. RORFERD BV R B R
7 INVENTORIES 7 BE
Group Company
=X AT
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2005 2004 2005 2004
20055 20045 20055 20045
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
AREFT ARETFT ARETT AREFT
Raw materials R 1,791 1,954 1,791 1,646
Finished goods Em 3,179 3,725 — —
Spare parts and consumables  ZE{FFK(E 5 FEm 2,150 121 32 121

7,120 5,800 1,823 1,767
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8 LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS 8 RERERE

Group Company
&b NG
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2005 2004 2005 2004
720054 20044 20054 20044
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARMTT ARETT ARMTT ARETT
Investment in subsidiary FREURE (FH(a)
companies (note (a)) — — 161,630 133,243
Other long-term equity Hih REAERE (b))
investments (note (b)) 6,000 6,000 4,000 4,000
Net book value B 6,000 6,000 165,630 137,243
(a) Investment in subsidiary companies (a) FARRE
Place of
Registered Interest held registration
capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities and operation  Type of company
b E
ek ERER B M IEXE RS- NAEE
Rmb’000 % %
ARETT Bol BOl

Guizhou Capital 100,000 95% —  Construction of municipal CGuiyang, the PRC  Limited liability
Water Co., Ltd. sewage water plants and provision ~ FEIE5T BREFAT
(“Guizhou Capital”) of related consulting services for

EMEIZABERAT water processing facilities

(TEMax]) TR KEEE RN B KBS R
FEER LA KRR

Tianjin Water 20,000 90% —  Production and sales of recycled Tianjin, the PRC Limited liability
Recycling water and technical consulting RERET BREALT
Co., Ltd. for water recycling business.

(“Water Recycling”) HKEEHE  dKERIERERR

REKBREEAA G G U

(TRz=HK])

Tianjin Capital 37,500 70.7% —  Production and sales of new types  Tianjin, the PRC Limited liability
New Materials of construction materials, etc REXET BREMAT
Co,, Ltd. MRS RORERFES
(“Capital Materials”)

RERFRM AR LA

(E-IES=270)

Chibi Capital Water 35,000 95% 5%  Development and construction of  Chibi, the PRC Limited liability
Co., Ltd. municipal sewage water plants, etc B 7REET BREFAT
(“Chibi Capital”) MRTKEER R HRE R EH

FRERFKBER LA FEMER

(IhEe%x])
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(b) Other long-term equity investments

Tianjin Baotong

Qinjiliao Co., Ltd.*
Tianjin Northern Human

Resources Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Pipeline Engineering

Management Co., Ltd.*

HitRBRERE

Group

Percentage
of interest
in registered
capital
HRERE
N E M
BB
%

Bk

REMBRREHNARAR *

RAEATT ANA R
BRAF

20%

6.1%

REPWITIREERRAR

* The Company has no significant influence on these entities.

20%
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&6t

Cost

IR B8 BL AN
Rmb’000
ARETT
2,000

2,000

2,000

6,000

Company

Percentage
of interest
in registered
capital
HRRE
YNCIEES I
BERLLH
%

Bk

20%

6.1%

ARNREEBERTE -

A HE

Cost

IR B8 BL AN
Rmb’000
ARET T

2,000

2,000

4,000



FIXED ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION/

AMORTISATION

Cost

At 31st December 2004

Additions

Include: transferred
from CIP

Disposals

At 30th June 2005

Accumulated

depreciation/amortisation

At 31st December 2004
Additions

At 30th June 2005

Net book value

At 30th June 2005

At 31st December 2004

9 EEREERRIIE B

Group
et
Plant
machinery Motor
Buildings and and  vehicles and
Land use structures  equipment others
rights Road EERK B &R EREH Total
T AE a5 2EN WERRE REf &t
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
ARBFL  ARETL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETI
RiE
200412 A31 BE#AE 649,891 185,418 687,041 277,840 75,852 1,876,042
AREE — - 211,288 92,808 8,920 313,016
A EETREA
| — — 55,288 90,633 8,784 154,705 |
RS — — (153) — (153)
20056 30 HHAE 649,891 185,418 898,329 370,495 84,772 2,188,905
SEHTE i
200412 A3 BHE  (71,337) (39,448) (291,389) (144,165) (35,987) (582,326)
RHEHE (7,348) (1,726) 9,723) (10,294) (3,424) (32,515)
20056 A 30 BerER (78,685) (41,174) (301,112) (154,459) (39,411) (614,841)
FE
20056 30 HEAE 571,206 144,244 597,217 216,036 45,361 1,574,064
200412 A31 BHE 578,554 145,970 395,652 133,675 39,865 1,293,716

ARAXBRROERATDVO-_ZESZTIFEHHRE
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Company

F
Plant
machinery Motor
Buildings and and vehicles and
Land use structures  equipment others
rights Road EER BER EREH Total
TERE B BEW BERE REf CE
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETRT ARBTT  ARETT ARETT
Cost RE
At 31st December 2004 2004 12 531 HEAE 645,804 185,418 628,101 205,823 68,089 1,733,235
Additions ARERE N — — 166,058 24 2,468 168,550
Include: transferred Hep  ERTIREA
from CIP | — — 10,058 — 1,903 11,961 |
Disposals KERD — — - (153) - (153)
At 30th June 2005 2005466 A30 HEAE 645,804 185,418 794,159 205,694 70,557 1,901,632
Accumulated RAE /B
depreciation/amortisation
At 31st December 2004 200412 A31 B#E  (71,112) (39,448) (289,527) (137,376) (34,863) (572,326)
Additions AREE (7,305) (1,726) (8,122) (4,426) (2,841) (24,420)
At 30th June 2005 20054 6 A 30 BHH (78,417) (41,174) (297,649) (141,802) (37,704) (596,746)
Net book value HE
At 30th June 2005 20066 A30 B&E 567,387 144,244 496,510 63,892 32,853 1,304,886
At 31st December 2004 2004 F12 A 31 B#E 574,692 145,970 338,574 68,447 33,226 1,160,909

All of the Group’s land use rights, road, buildings and structures

and plants are located in the PRC.

As described in Note 6, the additions to buildings mainly represent
cost of the Company’s office premises of about Rmb156 million.
The title to the building is currently being processed. Based on the
advice from the Group’s legal counsel, the Directors believe that
the title will be received in due course without additional significant

cost to the Group, if any.

REEWFAA L - B FEREEYHLR G

B -

M EEERTAL - AFIE MO EEREN P B IKA
HBARB16ETHMAE - ERBNEEEE
FREEERES - REARFZEEFNER &

XA

EMEERRE

SNNBARKA ©
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10 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 10 E8IRE
As at As at Incurred costs
Budget 1st January 30th June to budget
costs 2005 Transferred 2005 costs ratio
BEZH  R2005F Additions out  R2005%  Source of funds IBRAL
(BEWEE) 1R1H A AHEY 6A30R E2WR BEMLH
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 (%)
ANREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFRT
Xian Yang Lu 1,199,720 544,536 39,405 — 583,941 Bank loans and 49
55 KB R self-raised fund
BERRITER
Ji Zhuang Zi (Expansion) 1,054,722 634,477 16,555 — 651,032 Bank loans and 62
EETFAKEER (BE) self-raised fund
BERRITER
Bei Cang 366,327 104,845 10,890 — 115,735 Bank loans and 32
LRFKEER self-raised fund
BERRITER
Research and 16,546 6,525 880 (565) 6,840 Self-raised fund 41
Development Center BE
BB
Ji Zhuang Zi (Reconstruction) 43,990 5,175 12,362 — 17,537 Self-raised fund 40
REFAKEER (BRE) AE
Chibi Sewage Plant 23,000 6,591 10,474 — 17,065 Self-raised fund 74
SR o
Staff Dormitory 8,907 5,401 359 — 5,760 Self-raised fund 65
BIFE&1BEE AE
Others — 12,353 2,247 (11,396) 3,204 Self-raised fund
Hity AE
Total (Company) 2,713,212 1,319,903 93,172 (11,961) 1,401,114
a3t (87)
Tianjin Water 138,348 138,348 — (138,348) — Specific bank loans 100
Recycling Project and self-raised fund
fEFSKERTE A%  SOERREEEN
Others — 3,087 1,442 (4,396) 133 Self-raised fund
A b%
Total (Group) 2,851,560 1,461,338 94,614 (154,705) 1,401,247
At (&)
Including: Capitalised
borrowing costs
Hi - (EHERERN 28
-Company 38,231 14,329 — 52,560
— A7)
-Group 43,543 14,329 (5,312 52,560
=Y

HZE2005F6HA308 It - EETREAEAR
B HRFTIRREREE -

As at 30th June 2005, construction in progress had no diminution
in value, so no provision for impairment loss was made.
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11

12

13

14

SHORT-TERM LOANS

As at As at
30th June 31st December
2005 2004
20055 2004
6A30H 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARETT ARETT
ShenZhen Development Bank 50,000 —
RYINERIRTT
CITIC Industrial Bank 50,000 —
RIEEERT
China Minsheng Bank 100,000 —
B RART
Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank — 100,000
PERRERRT
Total-Company 200,000 100,000
DREF
Other banks 10,000 15,000
HAbIRTT
Total-Group 210,000 115,000

aptatt

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

As at 30th June 2005, there were no accounts payable to any of the
Company’s shareholders which hold 5% or more of the voting shares.

ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

As at 30th June 2005, there were no advances from any of the
Company’s shareholders which hold 5% or more of voting shares.

DIVIDEND PAYABLE

Pursuant to the shareholders meeting held on 31st May 2005, the
Directors proposed to distribute a final dividend of Rmb1.00 (tax
included) for every ten shares held by shareholders based on the
total number of shares of 1,330,000,000 as at 31st December 2004.
(2004: Rmb0.80 (tax included) for every ten shares held by
shareholders, totalling Rmb106,400,000).

The balance as at 30th June 2005 principally represents the 2004
dividend for A share shareholders which has been paid out
subsequent to period end.

11

55

Interest Rate

5.31%-6.42%

12

13

14

Guarantor

BRA

Per year

FR =

5.58%
5.02%

5.02%

5.31%

Company’s controlling
shareholder-Tianjin Municipal
Investment Company Limited
(“TMICL")

ERRER —RETBIREBR DA
(TR=EmH)

FE 14 BR 3K

HARENERPEERMNBFEARRFS% (E5%)
LA B SRRER (0 MR R A FRIE o

W AR

HIRFAU R P EIBURF B AR A]5% (B5%)
PA | SORME B AD B IR R B0 5008 ©

FEAS IR A

AR 2005F5 431 A BHMBRE XS RIB
Rk WE E2004F 128318 1 2 R K
1,330,000,000/x BE & - B10RIKZEIR A
FMARBITZ(EH) TRE X ARK
133,000,0007T (20045 : HF10fRIREIH 4T
FMARBSAH(EH) TRE X ARK
106,400,0007T) °

20056308 2 B A AR I HHARA R
ROAFRF  ZERFERBEIN -
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15 TAXES PAYABLE 15 EXHE
Group Company
a6t AT

30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December

2005 2004 2005 2004

20055 20045 2005 20045

6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H

Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

AREFT ARBF T AREFT AREFT

Income tax JEZ 1S 27,423 88,186 27,036 87,301
Business tax and others FERS & 5T R H oA 632 6,066 916 5,287
28,055 94,252 27,952 92,588

16 OTHER PAYABLES 16 HbEMARK
Group Company
aBt NG

30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December

2005 2004 2005 2004

R2005%F R20045F R2005%F R2004F

6HA30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A318

Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

Construction costs payable JERT IR 50,886 97,720 50,886 97,720

Payable for purchase FERTIE B ElTE A ER

of fixed assets 53,892 55,000 — —
Others HA 48,658 3,864 44,503 3,774
153,436 156,584 95,389 101,494

As at 30th June 2005, there were no other payables to the Company’s
shareholders which hold 5% or more of voting shares

RERER

HIREMEN AT EENFEARALS (B
5%) A £ FRIRER D BB IR AR -

RROERATDTO-_ZZEIFEFTHES
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17 LONG-TERM LOANS

The long-term loans are repayable as follows:

State Development Bank (note(a)) BIRFERTT (7HFE(a))
China Everbright Bank (note(b)) ~ FBIXKIRTT (iF#(b))
Less: Portion of long-term & BIAREAE

B —F RIS

liabilities due within
one year

The loans mature as follows:

—F AR
FE_FRXM
B=FEZFERFRAIN

Payable within one year

Payable in the second year

Payable in the third year
to fifth year

Payable after the fifth year HFENESA

B BIIARBAE
B —F AR

Less: Portion of long-term
liabilities due within
one year

17 REAER

(@)  Theloan is guaranteed by TMEB and secured by certain of the fee collection
rights of TMEB's business. The interest rate of this loan varies according to
the interest rate of long-term loans as promulgated by the People Bank of
China. The prevailing interest rate is 5.761% (2004: 5.76%) per annum.

REEREE -
Group Company
=ri NS
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2005 2004 2005 2004
20054 20045 20054 20044
6A30A 12A31H 6A30A 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARBETFT ARBETFT ARBETFT AREFT
580,000 555,000 580,000 555,000
100,000 100,000 50,000 50,000
680,000 655,000 630,000 605,000
(55,000) (50,000) (55,000) (50,000)
625,000 605,000 575,000 555,000
REERAREREMT ;
Group Company
&6t A
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2005 2004 2005 2004
20055 20045 2005 20045
6A30A 12A31H 6A30A 12A31H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
AREFT ARBEFT ARBEFT ARETFT
55,000 50,000 55,000 50,000
97,000 60,000 97,000 60,000
402,000 502,000 402,000 452,000
126,000 43,000 76,000 43,000
680,000 655,000 630,000 605,000
(55,000) (50,000) (55,000) (50,000)
625,000 605,000 575,000 555,000
(a) ZEFRARETBREHREEZREALESE
EHREE S WEEERER - ZR1TER ﬂ?ﬁz
BHREARRITEMORBERFEMES - R
B 4F 7 K /55.76% (20044 : 5.76%) °
(b) ZERABKRFHEHTKEEBRBERIERE

(b) Theloan is secured by the right to receive sewage water processing fees of
TSC and TMICL. The average interest ranges from 5.02% to 5.76%(2004:

5.02% to 5.76%).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2005 Interim Report
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18 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 1st July 2004, the Company issued 12 million “A share”
convertible bonds certificates at face value of Rmb100 each which
was listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange on 19th July 2004. The
aggregate amount of bonds issued was Rmb1,200 million. The net
cash received from issuance of convertible bond is about Rmb1,165
million after deducing the issuance expense of about Rmb 35 million.

As at 30th June 2005, TMICL held 208,809 bonds which represented
1.74% of the total convertible bonds (31st December 2004: 208,809
bonds).

The bonds, guaranteed by the Construction Bank of China, Tianjin
Branch (the “Guarantor”) and counter-guaranteed by TMICL to the
Guarantor, are convertible into shares of the Company at any time
on and after Tst July 2005 and prior to 30th June 2009. The initial
conversion price of convertible bond is set as Rmb7.7 per share and
the Company is entitled to revise the conversion price in the
conversion period based on the market price of the Company’s
shares. Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the bonds will be redeemed within 5 days after maturity
date on 30th June 2009 at 100% of the principal amount and accrued
interest in the fifth year plus an interest compensation for the
difference between the five times of bond interest of the fifth year
and the actual total interest paid in 5 years.

These bonds bear interest ranging from 1.7% to 2.7%. The actual
interest payable to the bond holders will be based on the carrying
bond interest rate and adjusted according to the five-year fixed
deposit rate published by the State. For the period ended 30th June
2005, the Company accrued related bonds interest of about Rmb14
million (30th June 2004:nil).

The bonds may be redeemed in whole or in part at 102% of par
value plus current year’s interest, at the option of the Company,
provided that during conversion period, the closing prices of the A
shares for any 20 days in 30 consecutive trading days are not more
than 130% of the conversion price.

The bonds may be resold to the Company in whole or in part
according to their maturity period, at the option of the bondholders,
provided that during conversion period, the closing prices of the A
shares for any 20 days in 30 consecutive trading days are less than
70% of the conversion price.

As described in Note 30, in accordance with the term of the bonds,
8,239,020 units were redeemed during August 2005. Accordingly,
the liability component of the bonds redeemed of Rmb824 million
has been reclassified from long-term borrowings to current
borrowings and the remaining component in amount of Rmb376
million was left in long-term liabilities as at 30th June 2005.

18 ENES

ANARA2004F7 1B AFEETT1,2008 K Al
EMNRIES BREEBEAREI00T - HEit
BITSBARE12ET - IBRBETEANAR
0.351E LR  BITEFFSHEHNABARE
11.65187T ° ZEH B M2004F7H 198 %
HEFRGLETMRS -

HZE2005F6A30H - KEMHFTEAIEHA
7] & % 208,8095k ( 20044 128 31H
208,8095K) ' (HZTEEHEEE1.74% °

IhEH A RBERERITREMDIT ([ERAD
REPHEER  TAHARXEMRAZERARME
RIER - ERHAE 3172 B —F18B120065F7
A1H# - 22009F6A30B I — @R 5 A
IF BBEATESRANRBER - AQFE
FHVIRERERABEBBRARE7.7C - 8
BHAR - Ao EEeAEREARRENT
BEREEERER WRERBMLIEE
B - 3R BEREFIERZITANEE &
BEFFIHRI200946 A308 2 & H5ER 5 H
W ARRBREEESINBHAERNESFHE
CRERAFHF BN  BERBHEIMNIEBES
BB ABSFEERMNBKSEMESFFE HM
NEBTERNE Z M ESE -

AABBITNEFNZEAFHNEERBITIRE
27%  BRIMNEESHFFEBEANFNESHES
A R E FRIEBRRET B FBF R X
RERKFE TR - HE2004F12831H
IENFE  RARRTEFMENAARE
1,4008 7T (& = 200496 A 30H [t 61E A :
) o

MRA R RAR R EEFEAEES0EZ S HF
EE20{ER 5 B A B ERTEN S BAERE
HH130% @ NARBEIREEN102%I 5
METEEFEFF SMEREBED 2RI H
RERWES

WRARBARRZEEEFEEIERZ B F
EE20(ERR 5 A MR ERENE MERER
M70%8 - BEFREABEBERBENES2

B E D R EHRART]

WM FES0ATHL - ARIE Fat B S &5k - BEEZE
2005 8AILEHFHBEACRRAARARE T L
ARBS2UBIHAIEE RALEREEZE
20056 A30H M ¥R B E i Ll 25 B
SRR EEERHAE  FSnEENE
EHEENR  BREHAAREIT6ET -
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19 SPECIFIC PAYABLES

Specific payables mainly include amounts totalling Rmb81 million
(2004: Rmb81 million), granted by TMEB to one of the Company’s
subsidiaries for the construction of Tianjin Ji Zhuang Zi Sewage Water
Recycling Project. The remaining balance of Rmb39,914 (2004:
Rmb307,000) is obtained from other authorities of Tianjin Municipal
Government. These specific payables are interest free, and the
method and date of repayment will only be determined after the
completion of the construction project.

20 SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and paid up capital: BBITRHEHRAR

(1) A shares with per value Rmb1:  BREEAARE 1 T2 AR
Non-circulating shares 8 A AR
State shares Bl A
Legal person shares BEAMK
Circulating shares 2R
Social public shares HERRK

(2) H shares with per value Rmb1:

Circulating shares outside China B fti@RIMIMNE IR D

&5/ oo

Social public shares Van=g/N Y g

All the A and H shares rank pari passu in all respects.

The Company established a Sponsored Level | American Depositary
Receipts (“ADR”) Program with the Bank of New York (as the
Depositary Bank). The Securities and Exchange Commission of The
United States declared that the registration statement of the ADR
Program has become effective on 23rd December 2003. Each ADR
under the ADR Program shall represent 20 H shares of the Company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company
did not and will not issue any new shares under such ADR Program.
Trading of the Company’s ADR will only be made in the over-the-
counters markets in the United States.

BREE/ARE 1 TZHK

1,330,000

19 ZHHREMNK

EERMNREBEEARBZ FRARMKET
BKRESNEEES Rt ARML8,1008
JC(2004% : ARG, 1008 7T) + HHEN K
H i AR #39,9147T (2004F : AR
307,0007T) ft RZEM M BT E M IPIES - A
RALEF5KEI R TIRER - LA EHEEMNR
BESEMBZAREABRTHE  TRE

EABER EREABERFEHERB B
FE o
20 |
Company
AF

30th June 31st December
No. 2005 2004
of Shares A 2005 & A 2004 &
BB & 6 A30H 12A31H
(1,000) Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FR AREFT ARBFT
839,020 839,020 839,020
38,485 38,485 38,485
112,495 112,495 112,495
990,000 990,000 990,000
340,000 340,000 340,000

1,330,000 1,330,000

PIBEARRHIBRER THBZEERS#EE -

NAFR2003F12 A23H 2 B LRIT (e A
SERIT) B — HERFIRFETEI(ADR) ©
FEBEFR P EE S E MR ERFHRE
Bl EMEREEER - ZEBFLRETEFP
ZEMNERTRERERER - +TRARFRNE
BHARZ AR AR ETAHBRRRD - A2
ALRB NI EREAZERGFIRETEIMELT
R - ZEBRGFIRRFEFEIF 2 ERFIER
BETEEXENTIMNELIZHA LT MR
SHEEEIBINTHETESE -
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CAPITAL RESERVE FUND AND GENERAL RESERVES

At 31st December 2004 and
at 30th June 2005

(@)

(b)

200412 A31 B R
2005 F 6 A 30 H&:%58

Amounts in capital reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or
for issuance of bonus shares.

General reserves

The general reserves comprise the statutory common reserve and the
statutory provident fund.

According to the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ Articles of Association, it is
required to transfer 10% and 5% to 10% of the net profit of the Company
as shown in the accounts prepared under PRC accounting regulations to
the statutory common reserve (until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital) and statutory provident fund, respectively. The transfers to these
reserves must be made before the distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The Directors decided not to make the appropriation from the net profit for
the six months ended 30th June 2005. The profit appropriation scheme will
be decided after the 2005 annual accounts are audited.

The statutory common reserve shall only be used to make up losses, expand
the Company’s production operation or increase the capital of the Company.

Upon approval at a shareholders’ general meeting, the Company may convert
its statutory common reserve into share capital. Provided that the amount
of such reserves remaining unconverted shall not be less than 25% of the
registered capital.

The statutory provident fund shall only be used for the collective welfare of
employees. This fund forms part of the shareholders’ equity and is non-
distributable other than upon liquidation.

REAEXR

21 BEXRDERBHAR

Group and Company

Capital Statutory Statutory
reserve common provident
fund reserve fund
EHRAT
EERER
BEERNE AEE EELRE
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b))
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
(iF#(a)) (i #(b)) (i #(b))
AREFT AREFIT AREFIT
69,289 116,232 58,117
(a) BARBEABRAKGE ATRARBEHANFEER

RRBERDA =

eI

AEBEETRBAMESMEFTRES -
REARBER  EBRPBESHHEFENFET

HW10%HEATRHATES (ERNELATESE
%L?ﬁiﬁz@ﬁso%tﬁi) KOFFEHE—10%
ARAELAHS - WESBATRERS ZATE

5= e

ARRIEETERTEUEZE2005F6A308 L/ E
BFFBEEARSE - 520069 EE s MALET
HERAIRLBENFEIBEHE -

AERBKLBERAERY : BHEEE
AAEERBRE R

BRAR

MEARRFRREBRASBBRESETE RS
AESEBEA  MBFENZBEATABRATES
BEATNEREMEARH256% -

ﬂ%zmﬁwhﬂ
BENTES

EERmE RA

FHX?*&@E’]_*KD

ZFREEFHRSE
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22 UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Original amount of undistributed
profit at 1st January 2005
Add: Net profit after tax for the period

Less: Cash dividend distribution by
general shareholder meeting (Note 14)

Undistributed profits at 30th June 2005

23 INCOME FROM PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION

(a) Income from principal operations

Sewage water processing services
Sewage water processing plants
construction services

Toll fee
Sales of construction materials
Others

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2005 Interim Report

22 RO EFE

Group and Company

EHELATE
Rmb’000
ARBF T
2005 F 1 A 1 HerEE
662,125
hn s ZNERE A 93,789
B RSB T — IR R EHER
FFERSF (Mt 14) (133,000)
2005 7 6 A 30 H#r%8 622,914
23 FEEBRARSEBER
(a) EEHEBWA
Group
&6t
Six months ended 30th June
2005 2004
HZE 2005 F HZE 2004 F
6 830H 6 830H
lt6{@A It61@A
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
AREFIT AREF T
VERN L 147,811 232,995
SEKER IR R SR
92,280 68,698
240,091 301,693
ERWE 32,645 32,144
SHEEM 3,193 —
Hith 528 —

276,457

333,837



(b) Segment information b) DEBHBER

Six months ended 30th June 2005
BZ2005F6A30HLE6MEA

Sewage water
processing and
sewage water
plant construction Construction Water
BKEER Tolls materials recycling Group
FKERERER ERKE BMER FkEE i
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AR®FT
Income from principal FEEBRA
operations 240,091 32,645 3,193 528 276,457
Costs for principal operations ~ F& £ AR (62,054) (8,893) (2,678) (4,466) (78,091)
Business tax and surcharges FEEBH S RMM (12,891) (1,795) — 3) (14,689)
Profit from principal operations ~ TE£EFE,/ (BE) 165,146 21,957 515 (3,941) 183,677
Less: Administrative expenses il : B2 EH (19,527) (5,380) (2,017) (1,576) (28,500)
Add: Financial expense - net B BBER - FE (16,696) (2,538) (314) (1,741) (21,289)
Others (expense)/income -net  Eftr () /WA 35 (403) 5,859 (354) 2,726 7,828
Total profit/(loss) ME/ (B8) &8 128,520 19,898 (2,170) (4,532) 141,716
Less: Income tax B e (43,130) (5,847) — — (48,977)
Net profit/(loss)before HME/ (FB) -
minority interests DR IBE AR 85,390 14,051 (2,170) (4,532) 92,739
Minority interests DYRRER (39) — 636 453 1,050
Net profit/(loss) FRE (FBE) 85,351 14,051 (1,534) (4,079) 93,789
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Income from principal operations

Six months ended 30th June 2004
BZ200456 A30HLE6MEA

Sewage water
processing and
sewage water
processing plants

Costs for principal operations
Business tax and surcharges

Profit from principal operations
Less: Administrative expenses
Add: Financial expense - net
Others (expenses)/income - net

Total profit
Less: Income tax

Net profit before minority interests

Minority interests

Net profit

24 FINANCIAL EXPENSES - NET

Interest expense of bank
borrowings and
convertible bonds

Less: Interest capitalised

Interest expense — net
Less: Interest income
Others

construction
BKEER Tolls Group
SRR EREWE a6t
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARBFT ARMFT AREFT
FEEBKA 301,693 32,144 333,837
T ETERAR (57,001) (7,393) (64,394)
FE BB S KM (15,994) 1,791) (17,785)
TEEBRE 228,698 22,960 251,658
B BEEER (24,049) (3,261) (27,310)
W B ER R (6,980) (864) (7,844)
Hth (Zh) WA 58 (1,936) 118 (1,818)
FEsazE 195,733 18,953 214,686
o PTSE (63,264) (6,254) (69,518)
SFFNE — D ER R B IART 132,469 12,699 145,168
LY BT (1,030) — (1,030)
I 131,439 12,699 144,138
24 MBERFE
Group Company
Six months Six months
ended 30th June ended 30th June
2005 2004 2005 2004
&6t AT
BZ2006F ®ZE2004F HZE2006F HZE2004%F
6 A30H 6 A30H 6 A30H 6 A30H
-6 {@A IE6f@A IE6f@A IE6 @A
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARETFIT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
IBITER R AT R
RNRAEFMNEZH
35,554 21,162 33,447 19,328
& BAMERLE (14,329) (12,904) (14,329) (11,070)
MBS FEE 21,225 8,258 19,118 8,258
B FBUA (5,560) (466) (5,252) (410)
EAt 5,624 52 5,622 51
21,289 7,844 19,488 7,899
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25 INVESTMENT (LOSS)/INCOME

Share of (loss) / profit of
subsidiary based on
equity accounting

26 Capital commitments

Water processing plants in:
- Xian Yang Lu
- Ji Zhuang Zi
- Bei Cang
- Chi Bi
- Bao Ying
- Qujing
Office building
Others

Total-Company
Zhongshui

Total-Group

25 RE(BX) hH

Group
Six months
ended 30th June

Company
Six months
ended 30th June

2005 2004 2005 2004
Bt AT
BZE2005F #®E2004F #EE2006F BE2004%F
6 H30H 6 H30H 6 H30H 6 A30H
tt61EA tt61EA tt61EA tt61EA
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARBFIT AREFT AREFT AREFT
BRERA
IR FRENEF (B58)
FE — — (4,862) 2,170
26 EXREIE
Contracted Authorised
but not but not
Amount provided contracted
invested BEARRE BRERELR
REHE for 31st for 31st
30th June 30th June December 30th June December
2005 2005 2004 2005 2004
HZ2005F #HZE200F #HZE2004F BHZE200F BZE2004F
6A30HIL 6A30HILE 12A31HL 6A30HILE 12A31HL
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
AREHET ARKGET AREKBET AREBET ARKBET
KERERER -
—Rif5 5 584 56 70 561 589
— T 651 16 19 387 401
—itE 116 160 98 90 164
—JREE 17 1 9 77 5
—EE — — — 65 _
— i — — — 108 —
RN — — 39 — 20
Hit 19 — — 31 26
B —AH 1,387 233 235 1,319 1,205
7K — — — 80 5
BEr—&H 1,387 233 235 1,399 1,210
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27

Furthermore, the Directors approved the following investment
projects in previous periods which remain uninvested at 30th June

2005:

Project item

REERE

Construction of a sewage water processing plant

RERER—FIFKEIER

Establishment of two joint ventures to
operate water related business

B -
EIEE - AR

Principal activities
REgE

Sewage water processing
PRy LS

Operate water related business

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2005 Interim Report

BARIMRAAAT kT
RELATED PARTIES 27 BEEEE
(a) Related parties that have controlling relationship (a) GHEEZEHBERNWEES
Name of related party: T™MICL TMEB Water Recycling  Guizhou Capital ~ Capital Materials
BAB R KRR KA FAEFK YIS CIES=2)
MHR
Place of registration: Tianjin, the PRC  Tianjin, the PRC  Tianjin, the PRC  Guiyang, the PRC Tianjin, the PRC
R - mELRE mERRE mERRE hEER hEIRE
Principal businesses: Development,  Supervisory Production and  Development and Production and
FTEEH: construction and management of  sales of recycled construction of  sales of new
management of  the infrastructure water etc. municipal sewage types of
municipal and road HUKRAEER  water processing  construction
infrastructures  construction in  $HEE plant etc. materials.
MHERREN  Tianjin MBKEER  HAEEM R
FEER TEXEM REERE HERHE
maER g ~ ARRHY
ERANER
Relationship with the Company: Controlling Supervisory Subsidiary of Subsidiary of Subsidiary of
BANAE - shareholder of  controller of the Company  the Company  the Company
the Company  the Group’s BRF AR TR AR ERF AR
ERRR businesses
EBREER
Type of enterprise: Limited company Government Limited company Limited company Limited company
MBS - BRAR authority BRAR ARAT BRAF
BXHEE
Legal representative: Ma Bai Yu Sun Zeng Yin Zhang Wen Hui  Gu Qi Feng Luo Lian Fang
EERRA I=ES Hige] RIE B By

EURFERARBIEEECRBIATR

Estimated
investment
amount
ERRESE
Rmb’000
ARBEFT

52,523

252,000

304,523

Chibi Capital
TRERR

Chi Bj, the PRC
REIRE

Development and
construction of
municipal sewage
water etc.
MBSKE IR &
ERERES
MR EMER

Subsidiary of
the Company
ARAZ
BRFA

Limited company

BRAT

Zhang Wen Hui
RIE



(b) Paid up capital of related parties that has controlling (b)

(c)

(d)

relationship and their movements

FHEESBRENBBINEIMERRES
1t

As at 1st January As at 30th June

2005 2005
A 2005 £ Additions A 2005 F
1A1H AHR L N B 6 H30H
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARSFT ARSFT ARMF T
TMICL KIEMI 1,820,000 — 1,820,000
Water Recycling RIEHK 20,000 — 20,000
Guizhou Capital BINEIZE 100,000 — 100,000
Capital Materials BIEEM 37,500 — 37,500
Chibi Capital TREEE| % — 35,000 35,000
Share or equity of the Company held by a related party (c) FEEHBENBBSMSEEAATRON
and its movements EERESL
As at 1st January As at 30th June
2005 Additions 2005
20051818 N GE i 20056 A30 H
Rmb’000 % Rmb’000 % Rmb’000 %
AREFT BOt ARETFIT Aot ARETFT Bt
TMICL REMIH 839,020 63.08 — — 839,020 63.08
Major related parties that have no controlling relationship (d) THEEEHBRERONETERES
Relationship with the Group
2] gt B ERIR

Tianjin Sewage Company
REMHKAT]
Tianjin Sewage Management Bureau
No.8 Management Office
RERMHREIREE N\ PR E R
Tianjin Sewage Engineering Company
REMPKITRRAF]
Tianjin Road & Bridge Management Bureau
REMERBRELE
Tianjin Municipal Engineering
Design Research Institute
REMMBTRRTR
Scott Willson (Tianjin) Consultancy Company
Bz (RF) TiEEABRRA

State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB
RAXMRBEENEEEERR
State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB

RXTRREENBEE RS R

State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB
RAXMRBEENEEEERR
State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB
RAXMRBEENEEEERR
State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB

RAXMRBEZENEEEERD

Associated Company of Tianjin Municipal Investment Co., Ltd

RN EFER AR RAHE & 1 A)
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28

The following is a summary of significant transactions with related
companies during the six months ended 30th June 2005, which
were carried out in the normal course of operations of the Group.

Name of related party

BT B8

Income:

ONE
TSC
RAEMHEKAA]

TSC
REMHAF

Expenses:

i

TMICL
RAEMK

Others:

Hith -

Related contractors

L £

RAEMHKIERA]
RAEMHKEER

Nature of transaction

REME

Revenue from sewage water processing
services (note (a))

AREIERSERA (iEF(a)

Revenue from construction of sewage
water processing plants (note (b))

FETKEEMIIRWA (:b))

Operating lease rental in respect of
office premises (ceased during 2004)
WMAEEEER (72004 FRKIE)

BEXS

#H Z22005F6A30R 1E6f@ A » REBFEEE T
M A EHREEREITHNERARZUOT ¢

Six months ended 30th June

Amounts payable for sewage water processing

plants construction costs

F&SZ 757K BRI AR BR A AR
Tianjin Sewage Engineering Company
Tianjin Sewage Management Bureau

(a) This represents revenue derived from the sewage water  (a)

processing services rendered by the Company to TSC according

to Sewage Water Processing Agreement, details of which are

set out in Note 1(a).

(b) This represents revenue derived from the construction of  (b)
sewage water processing plants services rendered by the
Company to TSC according to Sewage Water Plants
Construction Fee Agreement, details of which are set out in

Note 1(b).
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2005 2004

EHZE 2005 & HZE 2004 &
6 8301 68308
Ik 6fEA It 6fEA
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARETTT AREFTT
136,516 222,111
92,280 68,698

— 525

949 —

1,494 —

2,443 —

b YA R R R — 1 CHK R IR R wt i) e
TEIKER IR AR 1% T R R T BEK & Bl P R BUS RO K
A FHRKMEE ()

TR RRRBERRZMHKARRITNCOS
IKEZIR (PR 2) 2 TR E 2 i AE = {3
EKEEIER TREAEIRGHIRA - & B
1(b) °
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30

31

DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION

The Company and its subsidiaries have paid an aggregate
remuneration (including salaries, housing allowance and other
allowance) of Rmb949,820 (2004:Rmb795,182) and retirement
benefits of Rmb10,560 (2004:Rmb9,360) to the Directors, totalling
Rmb960,380 for the six months ended 30th June 2005 (2004:
Rmb804,542). The total amount includes director fees of
Rmb319,470 (2004: Rmb318,006) paid to independent non-
executive directors during the period.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Subsequent to period end, during August 2005, certain of the bond
holders exercised their option to redeem their share of the convertible
bonds issued by the Company, in accordance with the term of the
issuance (Note 18).

AUTHORISATION FOR THE ISSUE OF THE ACCOUNTS

The accounts were authorized for issue by the Directors on 30th
August 2005.

29

30

31

EEHE

B E£2005F6H30HIE6MER - RARRFA
AIAARRESINTHE (BREFE  BE
AL R H A EER) A R#949,8207T (2004 -
ARMT7951827L) MBEELH TRAKBHNE
AR#10,560 (20044 : AR¥9,3607T) ©
s AR #960,3807T (20044 : AR#804,542
) EFBEABUERTESIN M
AR #319,4707T (20044 : A R #318,006
7T) °

EEEBERARSE
REARFAEHRABRBESFERHBERTH

HOBBRTE A E@8BREFNTDEFHEA
F2005F 8 A1T{E T E B &4 (FFRMIFE18) ©

EEE: S+

SR MN2005F8 A3 0K HARAIES
SZERD -
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VIII. Accounts Prepared in Accordancewith \ - B EFEETHENFTEHD

HK GAAP ik B
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS BRGREEESER
As at 30th June 2005 R 2005F6H30H
(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) (BRIEFFFIIERATE 2 BB E 15 BARKEFT)
Note As at
30th June 31st December
2005 2004
Unaudited Restated
libg=a #HZ20055F HZE20045
6H30H 12H831H
KRS EL EHm7
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment & E B E 5 2,138,852 2,030,530
Land use rights T iE A 715,450 724,524
Investment property wEME 6 121,009 —
Investment in securities REEFH — 6,000
Available-for-sale financial assets FEZEMEE 6,000 —
Other non-current assets HiEmEEE 7 47,688 51,148
3,028,999 2,812,202
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 7,120 5,800
Trade receivables FEUER SR 8 479,047 393,802
Other receivables and H Ath FEUR )R TR 5RIB
prepayments 9 6,420 123,955
Deposit with a non-bank FFIRIT S MMEETT R
financial institution — 400,000
Cash and bank balances RITEHR LIRS 1,243,970 921,999
1,736,557 1,845,556

Total assets BEAS 4,765,556 4,657,758
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EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable
to the Company’s equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Minority interests

Non-current liabilities
Long-term bank borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Convertible bonds payable
Specific payables

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current income tax liabilities

Current portion of long-term
bank borrowings

Current portion of convertible
bonds payable

Short-term bank borrowings

Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

S
FRARRGBEFEEA
FEfE IR 4D R
BeA
g

FRBEME
RHRITHER
ERETIRBE
JE RIS E 75
BRI

RBRE

e R B A FE A 3R IR
IR

RITER —FAEEER
AERER 2 —FAEEER

72 BRI TR

BERERST

RBEEFE

HERDREERZBEE

RERER

Note As at
30th June 31st December
2005 2004
Unaudited Restated
Kzt B Z2005% HZE2004%
6A30H 12A31H
REET EFHm7
10 1,330,000 1,330,000
11 924,142 974,461
2,254,142 2,304,461
15,531 16,581
2,269,673 2,321,042
12(a) 625,000 605,000
28,364 33,835
13 349,159 1,097,467
14 91,652 91,719
1,094,175 1,828,021
15 344,398 255,509
27,423 88,186
12(a) 55,000 50,000
13 764,887 —
12(b) 210,000 115,000
1,401,708 508,695
2,495,883 2,336,716
4,765,556 4,657,758
334,849 1,336,861
3,363,848 4,149,063
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT BHREGEEER

For the six months ended 30th June 2005 E 22005F6H30H 1F~1EA
(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) (BRIEFFFIIERAT B 2 BB E 15 BARKEFT)
Unaudited
REGEST
Six months ended 30th June
Note 2005 2004
BZ6 A30HLAEA
libEza 2005 & 2004
Sales e 4 261,768 316,052
Cost of sales HEKA (78,091) (64,394)
Gross profit EF 183,677 251,658
Other gains, net HhEH —FE 4(a) 13,790 1,868
Selling and marketing costs HEER (355) —
Administrative costs ITHAX (28,565) (27,310)
Other operating expense, net Emg sy —FE (47) (3,272)
Operating profit BeERR 16 168,500 222,944
Finance costs AR 17 (43,363) (8,258)
Profit before income tax BB A=A 125,137 214,686
Income tax expense BiE 18 (43,506) (69,518)
Profit after tax for the period BRELZRA 81,631 145,168
Attributable to: T 5l
Equity holders of the Company F 5 B 5 ) 82,681 144,138
Minority interests DY R R ERE(GEE (1,050) 1,030
81,631 145,168
Dividend BRE 19 — —
Rmb Rmb
AR AR

Basic earnings per share for profit FREREFEA
attributable to the equity holders BiEERSREF
of the Company during the period 20 0.06 0.11
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FfHERGESRZS TR

For the six months ended 30th June 2005 HZE2005F6H30H 1F51EA
(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) (BRIEFFFIIEERAT B 2 BB E U 15 BA R FT)
Unaudited
REQES
Six months ended 30th June
Note 2005 2004
BZ6 A30RALAMEA
Hrat 2005 £ 2004 £
Capital and reserves attributable to B ATRMBEFEA
the Company’s equity holders PEAL IR 1D HE 2
As at Tst January ®1A1H 2,304,461 2,018,966
Profit after tax for the period frF 18 ) 82,681 144,138
Dividends R SR 19 (133,000) (106,400)
As at 30th June ®6A30H 2,254,142 2,056,704
Minority interests DERRERE
As at 1st January ®n1A1H 16,581 1,383
Profit attributable to minority BHOBR R R
interest for the period (1,050) 1,030
As at 30th June M6 H30H 15,531 2,413
Total equity ERaE 2,269,673 2,059,117

AERAXBRROBERADVDO_-_ZSZTIFEFRHEE 75



76

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT BHSERERER

For the six months ended 30th June 2005

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

# 220056 H30H 1L 756 A
(BRIFFFIER B £ BENITBARETIT)

Unaudited
REGEST
Six months ended 30th June
2005 2004
BZ6 A30HLKEA
2005 & 2004 &
Net cash (used in)/generated from: B&(XH) E4XZ2FHE
- operating activities — 4R (23,111) 87,009
- investing activities — & EE) 262,020 (114,814)
- financing activities —E£&Eg) 64,394 (33,530)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERBITAERZIEIN/ORD)
and bank 303,303 (61,335)
Cash and bank balances at 1st January B1 A1 BZRITHEBRERS 918,667 450,074
Cash and bank balances at 30th June* A6 8 30 AZR{THEABRES 1,221,970 388,739

* Excluding restricted cash and bank balances of Rmb22 million for 2005 (2004:  * B E PR &I RTT A 88 A R¥EE2,2008 7T (200445 « )

nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the six months ended 30th June 2005
(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

1. Company profile and principal activities

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established on 8th June 1993 in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") as a joint stock limited company. The
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) include
sewage water processing, construction of sewage water processing
plants, production of recycled water, construction materials and
operation of road toll stations.

The operation mode of the Group’s principal activities is described
below:

(a) Sewage water processing

Pursuant to relevant agreements (“Water Processing
Agreements”), the Group currently provides sewage water

BAEE P HRE M
#HZ2005F6 H30H 1F 518 A
(BRIEFFFIIEE AT A 2 BB E 15 BARKEFIL)

1. RABNREIERY

FERIERRBRGARAE ([A2AE]) 2R
1993F6A8HAEFREARILMEA ([FE])+F
MRz Z R DBRAR - AAR REKBEAF
([REE]) BRZEEEBPIESKERR
TEOKERIR IR R R ETS - Rk R EM EE KRB
U B U FE TS o

NTRASBEEEXE 2KLERA

(a) FREEER

RAEHHE ([OFKEEZTH
#01)  REBBBLAT=55KEERK

processing services via three plants as follows: BASSKERRAE ¢
Plant Location Contract Date Customer
wE BRI AH 'F
Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin 10th October 2000 TSC
RE RETF 2000 % 10 A 10 H BEKAR]
Dong Jiao, Tianjin 10th October 2000 TSC
KiE RA 20004 10 A 10 H BEKAR]
Guizhou 16th September 2004 GCAB
M 200449 A 16 A EEHUER
Legend: BE A ARRE
TSC - Tianjin Sewage Company is a state owned enterprise HEKAT — KEWHKATRES
under supervisory control of TMEB. Ry >BEALE I
RREMBBEE -
TMEB - Tianjin Municipal Engineering Bureau. KEFHE — KAETHHIRES-
GCAB - Guiyang City Administration Bureau. EEHER — SBETHTEES -

The principal terms of the pricing formula as set out in the
relevant contracts are briefly summarised below:

TSC:

The Group will have full recovery of actual operating costs,
including depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets,
excluding interest expenses and foreign exchange gains or
losses and at minimum:

(i) earn areturn of 15% per annum of the average balance
of the monthly net book value of fixed assets (as defined
in the agreement) of the plants; and

(ii)  incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving
and/or when actual processing volume exceeds the
minimum processing volume stipulated in the agreement.

HEw#EF Az E B2 EANM T AL :

71 /NI

AEEEZEABBERIEENSE B
BEEETEREE  BTEENEH
X RER B &K

() BB S KEEEREEETEE
(E& R 2EAFYEmMFEE
ZEEFEHEFTE 215%EH - B
Ko

(i) EESHERAIEELRESHBA
WERECRIEEIE S 2 8RN
B -
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GCAB:

Initial price is Rmb0.84 per cubic meter for the first two years,
thereafter

(i) the price after two years will be determined by a pricing
formula which will effectively allow full recovery of the
actual business costs, including operating cost,
depreciation, income tax and a return of 8% on net assets
of the plant; and

(ii)  the price might be revised after considering the factors
of renovation of equipment, additional investment, power
and energy and labour force etc.

(b) Construction of sewage water processing plants

Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”)
between the Company and TSC on 24th September 2001,
the Company is to provide construction services to TSC in
respect of three plants detailed below:

EBWER

B AR TEA0.847T, /S JT K Z BIRERET
MEFZFREERBEEE - thig

(i), —FHRRETRRHEPIIAZ
FEAANEENGKERS - FHEARK
LA KRREBEZARBERZ
RERE - BIEETRA  HE -
B E8%  FEERR : AR

(i) PARFEAREBREREDRE -
BERERERS N - BB HERE
RFEER -

BKEEBREREY

RIEA QA 200149 A24 A EHEKA A
BRIz CoKEE (BRE) EEIRKER
2 ([ERWBHZ])  AQFAEPEKRD
AHEEEER U T = @5 KEERRZ RS

Project Xian Yang Lu Ji Zhuang Zi Bei Cang Total
HEER R EEF & @t
Designed capacity (M?/day) BREZBRAREE (MHXK) 450,000 280,000 100,000 830,000
455 288 108 838
Estimated date of completion it LAY End 2005 End 2005 End 2005
2005 K 2005 K 2005 K
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
ARERER AREEBEER ARERER AREEBEER
Total construction FEAZ
costs to completion BEAAK 1,199 1,055 366 2,620
Total construction fees ERE 589 317 264 1,170
Construction fees recognised BH#R
by the Company jesidie
- up to 31st December 2004 —R2004F12A31H 302 209 133 644
- up to 30th June 2005 —H2005%F6 A30H 364 220 152 736
- for period to 30th June 2005 — 200651 A%6R 62 11 19 92
% of completion of construction ERMIEEEALL (MERUEE)
- as at 31st December 2004 —M 200412 A31H 51% 66% 50%
- as at 30th June 2005 —7 20056 A30 A 59% 70% 59%
Note: AT

Costs and fees are estimated numbers set out in the contracts and will be
adjusted on completion of the plants. Furthermore, the certified construction
costs include the fixed assets funded by the foreign loans as discussed later
in this Note.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2005 Interim Report

RRRARMBRRBAAMG  BETRET

BHEE ABCTKIREFESHKAFER
IMAMTEH R I ERITERRBZEEE

= o



The principal terms of the said contract are summarised below:

(i) afeewill be paid by TSC during the period of constructing
the plants as a reward to remunerate the Company for
accepting the responsibility to construct the sewage
plants. The aggregate construction fees payable to the
Company for the construction of these three plants
amount to approximately Rmb1,170 million.

(i) fee is payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis
according to the percentage of completion of the
respective construction projects estimated by the
Company. The percentage of completion of each project
will be adjusted on a quarterly basis according to the
certifications issued by qualified independent surveyors
or engineers; and

(iii) the Company is also responsible for the funding of the
construction cost of these plants.

Further, pursuant to the agreement upon the commencement
of operation of the three sewage water processing plants, the
rights and obligations between the Company and TSC will
follow the terms as specified in the Water Processing Agreement
as applicable to the Tianjin plants (Note1(a));

Also, on 24th September 2001, pursuant to respective
agreements (“Transfer Agreements”), the Company would
acquire the above three plants from TSC and would be
responsible for the construction and management of the
remaining uncompleted portion of the plants. The transfers
were deemed completed on 30th October 2002.

On 25th August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement
with TSC (“Co-operative Agreement”) whereby:

(i) the Company would be responsible for the overall
execution of the construction of the three plants;

(i) TSC would be responsible for making use of the original
loans from two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to
fund certain fixed assets used in these plants;

(iii) TSC would sell to the Company these Foreign Loans
funded fixed assets after their installation and the issuance
of verification reports, at their carrying value;

(iv) the Company would be responsible for the repairs and
maintenance of these fixed assets during the construction
period; and

(v) the construction fee charged by the Company pursuant
to the above mentioned Construction Agreement, would
include the cost of these fixed assets as the base.

ARz EZGEHRMT

() REWBZE  ARREAETKER
PR TiR 2R M - Hk R FE
EAARRAXNERERARAOR
ARBNIET  (EREBA QA
AERRSKEEMAR TR 25
B -

(i) RBEZKREDRZE  FRARES
ARBARARGRRBZEBEERE
Azt e B LRARREX
BRER ARESFTEHERE
RIBBZASENN TIRME B EK
THEEZZEFHERRE - A

B -

(i) N"ARMBESKERREETLR
FEds 8% -

A - KEARR LKA AR Z W
# o ERZE=ESKEEMAMRELR
B 2N BE B IRIRSKEER W
#Z BARBEHT (M1 (a)prd)

RIBFARQFR2001F9H24 H EEEKAF]
FrzEBAEERS ((EE2hal) &
ARERBRIEKARBRERSR 2 = @5
KEEMERTRR  WAERETIRZZ
BREE e BIMERTIREETEDR
2002910 A30H &/ °

A FIR200348 A 25 H B /KA TIZRE]
T—HEERE - BRIBEZAERZ

() ARAFAABSKEERERZITIER
BERBEM:

(i) PRABAEMNBEEREIER
TERFRREE T 57K 2 /AT
FZHOBEEEE

(i) PEARARMAIERITEREREZ
BE EEETK LT KL EARRAR
WEKRRE—RIERBIKARIAKRE
EESBETARQFA

(iv) RATLZEREEEEET AAQA
ZH  HESKEEMERETIRER
i ARRRERSETEELZ
MENMRERBEETEECEE M
e

(v) REERKEBHBAEZRE  EER
BEREUAKREEBEZSEETEE
RAVERETR -
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(c) Road toll stations

Prior to 2003, the Company owned the right to set up toll
stations at the junctions between the city roads of Tianjin and
expressways leading to the city, and to collect tolls generally
from non-Tianjin registered motor vehicles passing these toll
stations for a term expiring on 28th February 2029.

During 2003, following the reform of the public transportation
network, the Tianjin Municipal Government decided to relocate
certain toll stations, including those of the Company, to the
boundary of the interstate highways surrounding Tianjin. The
collection of tolls from non-Tianjin registered vehicles will be
centralised at a Tianjin Toll Collection Office (“Toll Collection
Office”) set up by TMEB. As a result, the Company’s toll stations
were demolished since 31st May 2003 and TMEB agreed to
compensate the Company as follows:

(i) aone-off cash compensation by TMEB equivalent to the
net book value of the assets of the demolished toll stations
as at 30th June 2003 of about Rmb33 million.

(i) compensation for loss in revenue, during the period from
31st May 2003 to the date of completion of construction
of the new toll stations(mentioned in following
paragraph), equivalent to the revenue received in the
same period of last year of about Rmb5.5 million net of
expenses.

(iii) Company was granted the collection right of six new toll
stations from 1st July 2003 to 28th February 2029.
However, the Company is not allowed to transfer, lease
or pledge the right to other parties without TMEB’s
consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll
Collection Agreement”) with Toll Collection Office on 24th
July 2003 with following principal terms:

(i) the Company has engaged the Toll Collection Office to
collect the tolls at the six new toll stations on its behalf
for which it will pay a management fee;

(i) the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from
the six new stations for the corresponding period/year,
subject to minimum toll fee for each period/year based
on the forecast traffic flow and tolls for the corresponding
period/year as stipulated in a traffic flow and tolls forecast
report for the six new toll stations issued by a professional
consulting company in July 2003; and

(i) Any shortfall to the Company between actual and the
agreed minimum will be compensated to the Company
by the Toll Collection Office.
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Basis of preparation and accounting policies

This unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial report(the
“interim financial report”) has been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Appendix 16 of Rules Governing the List of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The interim financial report should be read in conjunction with the
2004 Annual Accounts.

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of the interim financial report are consistent with those
used in the annual accounts for the year ended 31st December 2004,
except that upon adoption of the revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“new
HKFRSs") which are effective for accounting periods commencing
on or after Tst January 2005, certain of the Group’s accounting
policies were changed.

The interim financial report have been prepared in accordance with
those new HKFRSs and interpretations issued and effective as at the
time of preparing this information (July 2005). The new HKFRSs
and interpretations that will be applicable at 31st December 2005,
including those that will be applicable on an optional basis, are not
known with certainty at the time of preparing this interim financial
information.

The changes to the Group’s accounting policies and the effect of
adopting these new policies are set out in Note 3(b) below.

EREBREABE

ARGEABAPHRE DIRREEGEA
SRz EE G EBER ([G5HER)) 534
ST BHRE] - ARBEREZHMER
RE (B2 pT]) ETARBIMER16MAREL

RESRA R HABR B JEER2004F 2 FE M SRR —
HEIE -

REAKPAF AR FMRA 2R RFE
FIREARREHE2004F 128318 IEFEE
FERE -3 HASBRMNT 2 BBV BR
HSEARBEGTEBEL GER) - B8R
BETEBER - ZF SR ERIIRN 200551 A
1R AERE 2 g st HARR ARk -

RNEBMBRMA T B IERE AR (2005F778) £3%
ZETEERIB N RN R 2005F 12 A31H £
N R TR AR AN 2 BRI - AL M R IR AN
BRI SRR 2 R N E T o

BABR 2 EE LR F R 2 B WM
FE3(0) 7R °
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3.

New and changes in accounting policies

(a)

(b)

New accounting policy
Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and that is not
occupied by the companies in the consolidated Group, is
classified as the investment property.

Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. The depreciation of investment
property is calculated to write-off that cost, less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, on a straight-line basis over estimated
useful lives for 40 years.

Major changes in accounting policy
HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statement

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interest, share
of net after-tax results of associates and other disclosures.
Minority interests shall be presented in the consolidated balance
sheet within equity, separately from the parent shareholders’
equity. Minority interests in the profit or loss of the group shall
also be separately disclosed. The 2004 comparatives have been
amended as appropriate.

HKAS 17 Leases

Adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy relating to land use rights now reclassified
as operating leases. In prior years, land use rights was accounted
for at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment The 2004 comparatives have been amended as
appropriate.

The retrospective application of HKAS 17 has resulted in a
reclassification of unamortized lease premium for land from
fixed assets to land use right, with a decrease in fixed assets a
corresponding increase in land use right of Rmb7.15 million
(2004: Rmb?7.25 million). There was no impact on the income
statement.

HKAS 32 Financial instruments: disclosure and presentation

Adoption of HKAS 32 has resulted in change in accounting
policy for disclosure of financial instruments. HKAS 32 requires
an issuer of a compound financial instrument (that contains
both financial liability and equity components) to separate the
compound financial instrument into its liability and equity
components on its initial recognition and to account for these
components separately. In subsequent periods, the liability
component is carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

3.
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The principal impact of HKAS 32 on the Group is in relation to
convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both
liability and equity components. Previously, convertible loan
notes were classified as liabilities on the balance sheet. Because
HKAS 32 requires retrospective application, comparative figures
have been restated. Comparative equity for 2004 has been
restated as below:

Balance at 31st December 2004,
as previously reported
- Equity component of convertible bonds
- Fair value losses on convertible bonds
- Deferred tax impact on fair value losses

Balance at 31st December 2004, as restated

HKAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement

The Group’s other unlisted investments, included under non-
current assets, are classified as equity securities. Unlisted equity
securities which are available for sale are carried at fair value
and changes in fair values are dealt with as movements in the
investment revaluation reserve, if any.

HKAS 39 does not allow retrospective application therefore
the 2004 comparatives have not been restated.

Turnover, other revenue and segment information

An analysis of sales, stated net of business tax, and contributions to
operating profit for the period by principal activities is as follows:

(a) Analysis of the Group’s turnover and other revenue

Turnover (Note 4(b)) B (Mt 4mb)

Other gains H A
- Rental — WA
- Interest income — R BUA
- Others —HAt
Total revenue FEN N

ZHEEHBREETEFEREBTZE
ERMERE 2 TERES - RIARIFE
AEBRESERABERGEEEEREBERY
e ERZEREREPER - 20045
ZHBHFEEFMRI © 20044 2 L
EREFEIIMT

Total reserves

#E
72004 F 12 A 31 B » FHEER]
905,763
— Al BN REHFE @D 100,215
—A[EMNREHF AR BEZEKX (47,041)
— A EMNREHF AR BEBRERZELEHRIE 15,524
R 2004 F 12 B 31 HEHHEHE

974,461

HKAS 39 @ T A : A NE
FIRRIERBEE I LTIREREEE
EHIETARERS - WEZBHFUATE
BEAR AT EEEHEIGEREEGHE
BEERIE -

HKAS 39 T"RFFEMER @ ML EERT
FBEEREEFHRY
EEH - Hhl AR HER
AT A# 1F2005E6 5308 (F6fE Aik T &2
BRI ZEEBRERBDIT
(a) AEBZEE£EREMBADH :

For the six months ended
30th June 2005 30th June 2004
BHZ6 A30HIAEA

2005 F 2004 &
261,768 316,052
5,896 —
5,561 466
2,333 1,402
13,790 1,868
275,558 317,920
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(b) Business segment analysis (b) FEEBEXBERXEIM
For the six months ended 30th June 2005: H E20059F6A30H (k6@ A :
Sewage
processing
and
construction
of sewage Construction Water
plants Tolls materials recycling Group
EKEER
JEKERER
EBR ERWE BN ER KRR &6
sales FE< 227,200 30,850 3,193 525 261,768
Segment results PEELE 145,216 27,931 (1,856) (2,791) 168,500
Finance costs BT A (43,363)
Profit before BB A E R
taxation 125,137
Taxation FRI8 (43,506)
Net profit after tax RBIZZ2F
for the period 81,631
For the six months ended 30th June 2004: H 2200496 A830H k6@ A :
Sewage processing
and construction
of sewage plants Tolls Group
EREER
KR MRS ERWE a6t
Sales —E -0 285,699 30,353 316,052
Segment results DEHELE 203,127 19,817 222,944
Finance costs B I (8,258)
Profit before taxation R AT E A 214,686
Taxation BE (69,518)
Net profit after tax BREEER
for the period

Pursuant to the PRC tax rules, the Group is subject to PRC
business tax levied at 5% of operating revenue and government
surcharges levied at 10% of the amount of business tax. The
business tax and government surcharges related to revenues
derived from the Group during the six months ended 30th
June 2005 amounting to Rmb15 million (2004: Rmb18 million)
and has been deducted from the operating revenue to arrive
at the turnover of the Group.
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The segment assets and liabilities at 30th June 2005 and capital 20056 A30R 2 nEBEEB BRE

expenditure for the six months then ended are as follows: Z2005F 6 A30H IE/AE A 2 & A N
T
Sewage plant
construction and Construction Water
Sewage plant Tolls materials recycling Total
BRKEER

BREEBER ERKE B KRR &t
Assets DEEE 4,001,421 527,332 43,014 152,798 4,724,565
Unallocated assets ANREE 40,991
Total assets HEE 4,765,556
Liabilities DEEE 2,078,175 204,622 10,590 143,897 2,437,284
Unallocated liabilities KOBEAE 58,599
Total liabilities HneE 2,495,883
Capital expenditure Z74pI% 252,925
The segment assets and liabilities at 31st December 2004 and FR20045F12A3MBZ A EKEEEEBR
capital expenditure for the six months ended 30th June 2004 EHZE2004F6A30R EAEAZEARZ
are as follows: N

Sewage plant

construction and Construction
Sewage plant Tolls materials Total
SKEBER

SKEERES ERkWE EMER a5t
Assets DEBEE 4,156,240 443,540 51,978 4,651,758
Unallocated assets RKOBLEE 6,000
Total assets wWEE 4,657,758
Liabilities HEEE 2,189,747 109,034 17,385 2,316,166
Unallocated liabilities KOLEE 20,550
Total liabilities HwasE 2,336,716
Capital expenditure E7REX 6,577
No geographical segment analysis is presented since all of the REERBEBHERBIEAFRE @ #0R
Group's operations are in the PRC. RO REERE -
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5. Capital expenditure

Net book value, at beginning of period
- as previously reported
- reclassification of land use rights

- as restated

Additions in construction in progress
in respect of
- sewage plant construction projects
- sewage Water Recycling Project
of the subsidiary
- others
Additions of other fixed assets
Disposals for the period
Depreciation for the period

Net book value, at end of period

6. Investment property

Investment property represents the cost of the portion of the Group’s
office building leased to third parties. Based on the advice of an
independent professional valuer, the Directors believe that the fair
market value of the investment property closely approximates its
book value of Rmb121 million as at 30th June 2005.

7. Other non-current assets

Unamortized issuance expense (Note (i)
Restricted bank deposits (Note (ii))

Notes:

(i)  Theissuance expense of the convertible bonds ( Note 13) is being amortised (i)
over the duration of the bonds. Any unamortized amount would be charged
to income statement in the year when the bonds are redeemed, converted
or purchased and cancelled before the maturity date on 30th June 2009.

5. BEFXRX

For the six months ended
30th June 2005 30th June 2004
BZ6 A30HIANEAR

2005 £

1 A1 B8E

—REET 2,755,054

—ENHEERE LT (724,524)

KB 2,030,530
TR

— KRR TR 66,850

— B AFS/KEIATE

—H 27,764
EEEELL N 37,302
BE (153)
ZERITE SR (23,441)
HiR %R

2,138,852

6. REWE

1.21187T °

7. HMFERBEE

2004

2,526,863

(738,433)

1,788,430

132,815

6,946

7,702

6,342
(3,300)

(19,911)

1,919,024

BRENEABERLAETRELRE=-FH2HD
G 2BRA - RIEBY EETERIEBEZER
RAREERAZREME TS AR BER
PR HEE 2005468308 2 REEBE AR

30th June 31st December

2005
A 2005 F
6 830H
Ryl EIREABITER (1) 27,688
SRRIBITFFR (FEFE(I) 20,000

=X18 47,688

2

2004
A 2004 F
12A31H

31,148

20,000

51,148

AERES (M3E13) 2 BT BRINRETHER
BESHEEZHNBERARZ ZHERBEHE
WEE EEHFEHBAFEHEE - 822009
F6A30RA  MRAEBRARBEHFBELHE

Bl # - BE - RERUERSETR AKE
WA HARFERTERAE Y R AEHE

25 o

m

(i)  As at 30th June 2005, included in restricted bank deposits was an amount (i) HM200546A30H + HitEHESBIEARAF

of Rmb20 million (2004: Rmb20 million). These deposits represent collateral
deposited with a financial institution which provided guarantee for the
issuance of the Company’s convertible bonds.

BRFEZRRITREDDTERZDTRARD
AREUTEEESERZARER

AR

20,000,0007T (20044 : 20,000,0007T) °
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Trade receivables 8. EWERR
Details of the accounts receivable are set out as follows: JEURBRSRAAA AT -

30th June 31st December

2005 2004
R 2005 F R 2004 F
6 A30H 128 31H
Due from GCAB for: FEWERHE D
- water processing services (Note 1(a)) — /5K A (HfaE 1(a)) 7,621 1,981
Due from TSC for : FEUHERAT] -
- water processing services (Note 1(a)) —5KEEIBUR A (KT 1(a)) 127,142 133,541
- construction of plants (Note 1(b)) —VEKEIERRERR BN (3T 1) 321,538 238,484
Due from Toll Collection Office for: FEMRBT -
- Tolls (Note 1(c)) —BERITEWA (M 1) 19,406 19,157
Others Hth 3,340 639
479,047 393,802
The normal credit period granted to the customers of the Group is BEBAT AEEGTEPHERARW
90 days. Although TSC has not been settling its debts in accordance R BEHOKRAIREIRIRER I E B = (T
with the terms of the Construction Agreement (Note 1(b)), the F1b) 2HERFINERE  EFMDEE
Directors believe all the amounts due from TSC will be fully FEWBEK A B 2 SRIE & 4 8 2 g1 -
recoverable in due course.
The aging analysis of the trade receivables was as follows: it IR BRI AN TS ¢

30th June 31st December

2005 2004

7 2005 F A 2004 F

6 A30H 12HA31H

One to two years 1-2 & 72,811 13,318
Within one year 1FUA 406,236 380,484
479,047 393,802
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9. Other receivables and prepayments
Other receivables E eI
Prepayments FERTERR
Prepayments as at 31st December 2004 included about Rmb115
million being the prepayment for the office building referred to in
Note 6. This amount has been transferred to investment property
or fixed assets during 2005.
The title to the building is currently being processed. Based on the
advice from the Group’s legal counsel, the Directors believe that
the title will be received in due course without additional significant
cost to the Group, if any.

10. Share capital

NAFEMBEA - BETREAREA
(1) SBREEAARE1ITZAR:

Issued and fully paid up capital
(1) Ashares with per value Rmb1:

Non-circulating shares AR R
-State shares —BExRAR
-Legal person shares —BREAR

Circulating shares Rl
-Social public shares —HEATR

SREEAARNE 1 T2 HR
ERBEIMIERS
~ BT

@ 2)

H shares with per value Rmb?1:
Circulating shares outside China

-Social public shares

All the A and H shares rank pari passu in all respects.

The Company established a Sponsored Level | American Depositary
Receipts (“ADR”) Program with The Bank of New York (as the
Depositary Bank). The Securities and Exchange Commission of The
United States declared that the registration statement of the ADR
Program has become effective on 23rd December 2003. Each ADR
under the ADR Program shall represent 20 H shares of the Company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company
did not and will not issue any new shares under such ADR Program.
Trading of the Company’s ADR will only be made in the over-the
counters markets in the United States.

9.

10.

Hib B R R SR
30th June 31st December
2005 2004
2005 F 2004 F
6 H30H 12HA31H
6,420 8,544
— 115,411
6,420 123,955
R2004F 12 AMB BN RIBABEEZRAR
RIENG—EEERBNAE (Wite) RI1B
ARE1NBETT - ZFEREAFE —HEAR
HEREvEEEEFELENES - BREAR
AEEBREZER  EEMEERKEIEHE
BeERMIEEETMBINZERLE -
[ &N
No. of
shares 30th June 31st December
(1,000) 2005 2004
13 20055 20045
TR’ 6H30H 12A31H
839,020 839,020 839,020
38,485 38,485 38,485
112,495 112,495 112,495
990,000 990,000 990,000
340,000 340,000 340,000

1,330,000

1,330,000 1,330,000

FEARKRHERES THHZERSER -

NAFR2003F12 A23H B BALRIT (1EA
AERIT) B — BERGFHRETEI(ADR) -
EEBEER G L ECCEMZERAFILEER
Bl MR EER - ZERFLRETEF
ZEHMERFRERERERZTRAQTNE
BEHAERSMARAR EMZHBRD - A2
AL A MR AZERTIRET 2 M7
FIED o ZEBEFRLEEFER Z2EZRFLR
BETGEEB 2 AMNELERZHAET MR
CEERBITHETES -
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Reserves

The reconciliation and movement of reserves are as follows:

Balance at 1st January 2005,
as previously reported

Convertible bonds -
equity component, net of tax
Fair value loss, net of tax -
liability component of
convertible bonds

Balance at 1st January 2005
restated

Profit after tax for the period

Dividend paid relating
to 2004 (note(i)

Balance at 30th June 2005

Balance at 1st January 2004,
as previously reported

Profit for the period

Dividend paid relating
to 2003 (note(i)

Balance at 30th June 2004

Notes:

R2005E1818
B%E7

AERES
a2y K

EALTES
b
X Bk

Bk

R2005F1A18
L]

BB AR

2004 FiR S &K
(&)

R 200556530

R2004E1818
R%E7

Gl

2003 Fl S &K
()

200456 A30 B

1. &%
IWTNAEEBREEHIER

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRARGHAARER G EE
Convertible
bonds Proposed
Capital General reserves Retained final
reserve reserve nER earnings dividend Total
EX0E BHAR ExEE RERH RE CHi
69,289 174,349 - 529,125 133,000 905,763
— — 100,215 — — 100,215
— — — (31,517) — (31,517)
69,289 174,349 100,215 497,608 133,000 974,461
— — — 82,681 — 82,681
— — — — (133,000) (133,000)
69,289 174,349 100,215 580,289 — 924,142
69,289 125,869 — 387,408 106,400 688,966
— — - 144,138 - 144,138
— — — — (106,400) (106,400)
69,289 125,869 — 531,546 — 726,704
FERE

(i) Pursuant to the shareholders meeting on 31st May 2005, a final dividend of
Rmb1 (tax included) for every ten shares , totalling Rmb133 million was
declared based on the total number of shares of 1,330,000,000 as at 31st
December 2004 (2004: Rmb0.8 (tax included)) for every ten shares, totalling

Rmb106 million).

(i)

RNAFIH2005%5A31EBHAZE13ARERE

BIBRE

A £ 20045128318 1F 2 R AR

1,330,000,000f% BEE - H10IREIRSALFA
R¥1T (58) FRE - #£5F AR% 133,000,000
7L (20044 : BIORIKFER AT ARKSA (7
i) TR - HEH ARM106,400,0007T ©
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12. Bank borrowings 12. RITER

(@) Long-term bank borrowings (a) REISBRITHEN

Long-term bank borrowings include:

State Development Bank (note (i)) BIRFERIT (L)

China Everbright Bank (note (ii)) PR KERTT (AEFE(H)
Less: Long -term bank borrowings & BIIARBAE

repayable one year included Z—FNEHS

under current liabilities

These borrowings mature as follows: REBITEFEBERBOT
Within one year —FLARZ AT

In the second year E_FANEN

In the third to fifth year BE-FEFAFAZN

After the fifth year RFLAE AT

Notes:

(i)  This loan is secured by TMEB guarantee together with certain of its
fee collection rights, and bears interest according to the rates for
long-term loans as promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The
average prevailing interest rate is 5.76 % (2004: 5.76%) per annum.

(i) The loan is secured by the right to receive sewage water processing
fees of TSC together with Tianjin Municipal Investment Co.,
Ltd.’s(“TMICL") guarantee and bears interest rate ranging from 5.02%
to 5.76% (2004: 5,02% to 5.76%) per annum.
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R

(i)

(ii)

30th June 31st December

2005 2004

A 2005 F A 2004 F
6 8301 12A31H
580,000 555,000
100,000 100,000
680,000 655,000
(55,000) (50,000)
625,000 605,000
55,000 50,000
97,000 60,000
402,000 502,000
126,000 43,000

680,000 655,000

ZIERBEREMERBIRERBERRUARE
MBBEHEEEBT 2B R BREIEAER -
?fEﬂ% K F) Iﬁz#ﬂh BEARBITEMZ R
HERANEMEY  BEFEFEAE576%
(2004¢ 5.76%)"

ZIEREPK A RRSKERE B R B EIE
AERURBARAERBRERZTEIRE
BRAR([REWMR]) REHEZER - F7)
K 55.02%%)5.76% (20044F : 5.02%%|
5.76%) °



13.

(b) Short-term bank borrowings (b) EHRITEM
30th June 31st December
2005 2004 Interest Rate Guarantor
A 200545 A2004%F
6H30H 12A31H FH = ERA
ShenZhen Development Bank . RN ERRTT 50,000 — 5.58% —
CITIC Industrial Bank HREEZERTT 50,000 — 5.02% —
China Minsheng Banking . B R A RTT 100,000 — 5.02% —
Shanghai Pudong FERRERRT
Development Bank — 100,000 5.31% —
Other banks HAhIRTT 10,000 15,000  5.31%-6.42% Company's
controlling
shareholder-
TMICL
RAETIK
(TERRARER 1)
210,000 115,000
Convertible bonds 13. ENES

On 1st July 2004, the Company issued 1.2 million “A share”
convertible bonds certificates at face value of Rmb100 each, which
was listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange on 19th July 2004. The
aggregate amount of bonds issued was Rmb1,200 million. The net
cash received from issuance of bonds is about Rmb1,165 million
after deducing the issuance expenses of about Rmb35 million.

As at 30th June 2005, TMICL held 208,809 bonds which represent
1.74% of the total convertible bonds (31st December 2004: 208,809
bonds).

Principal terms of bonds:

The bonds, guaranteed by the Construction Bank of China, Tianjin
Branch (the “Guarantor”) and counter-guaranteed by TMICL, the
Company’s controlling shareholder, to the Guarantor, are convertible
into shares of the Company at any time on and after 1st July 2005
and prior to 30th June 2009. The initial conversion price of the bonds
is set as Rmb?7.7 per share and the Company is entitled to revise the
conversion price during the conversion period based on the market
price of the Company’s shares. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or purchased and cancelled, the bonds will be redeemed
within 5 days after maturity date on 30th June 2009 at 100% of the
principal amount and accrued interest in the fifth year plus an interest
compensation for the difference between the five times of bond
interest of the fifth year and actual total interest paid in the 5 years.

AAFF20045F7 418 AREIT1,2008 5K A]
HMNFES SREEARKE100T - £5
BT ERARESFSBARE12(ETT - Mk
BTERAHARKEIL00ELE - B1TESAT
BMEZFEEAARKE1165ET - ZEHR
2004F7R19BRE L BB RIS LEMRS ©

KEM B 200556 A30H 4 {&%208,809
3k (200445128318 : 208,8095K) - (hiz &
BEHEMEEE1.74% °

FEHK

SRR A R EH BT BERIRITRETHIT
(TERADREZEER - WAHARETRAZ
BRARERER EREERT2H—F&
B120054 7818 # » £2009F6H30H A1 2
—@AXZEIE - BEARTEEREARNEFE
B o ADRIAHRESRZVBEERERABTR
ARBET I - EEBRIAN  XRARESESH
FERBATRE 2 MIGERE EERER - 1
RERPESEER - 8% BERERIER
STRZEE - AT M EEEIAIE1200956
A30AZ%Z5EAXS BN ARAIKBE2EEE
BISAERAEEASREAF L
SN BEBEESNEBESFEEASEER
FEZoEMESFRBHENERTERN R Z
M=% -
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These bonds bear interest ranging from 1.7% to 2.7%. The actual
interest payable to the bond holders will be based on the carrying
bond interest rate and adjusted according to the five-year fixed
deposit rate published by the State. For the period ended in 30th
June 2005, the Company accrued the related bonds interest of about
Rmb14 million (30th June 2004: nil).

The Company has the option to redeem the bonds one year after its
issuance through its maturity in whole or in part at 102% of par
value plus current year’s interest, provided that during conversion
period, the closing prices of the A shares for any 20 days in 30
consecutive trading days are not more than 130% of the conversion
price.

The bond holder has the option to resell the bond to the Company
in the conversion period in whole or in part according to their
maturity period, provided that during the conversion period, the
closing prices of the A shares for any 20 days in 30 consecutive
trading days are less than 70% of the conversion price.

Fair value:

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined at issuance of the bonds.

The fair value of the liability component, included in long-term
borrowings, was calculated using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The residual amount, representing
the value of the equity conversion component, is included in
shareholders’ equity in other reserves net of deferred income taxes.
Interest expense on the bonds is calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate of 5.6% to the liability
component.

Redemption subsequent to period end:

In accordance with the term of the bonds, 8,239,020 units were
redeemed during August 2005. Accordingly, the liability component
of the bonds redeemed of Rmb765 million has been reclassified
from long-term borrowings to current borrowings as at 30th June
2005. The fair value of the remaining liability component of the
bonds at 30th June 2005 is estimated at about Rmb349 million
(2004: Rmb1,097 million).
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27%  BRINEGEHFHFBEAZANEHEER
@ﬂﬁzgﬁiﬁﬁl%imﬁiﬁﬁmﬂ+
2 ERKET AT - HE 20056308 1E
6 A ARG RERTEHFMNENAARYE
1,4008 7T (B £ 200465308 1L618 A :
m) o

RAREAEBRARESFHITA —FEEES
GEHRERANBERES 2R - MREARQA]
A%%%E&ﬂ%ﬁwm*%a¢&nmm*
SAZHREBEBRTEREHERERL 2
130% * AR Tﬁ%&ﬁ@Zum%Itm%
TR BFEFFNEZEBRER IO RE
Pz A EIRES o

AEBAREFREAREENERARAES
BN EES BN - MRAQFARE
REMMEEIVEARSHTRER20EZZ A2
WREREREMERERZ70%E - EFHF
EA%%HEH%ZTL@ AlfEH2 AR ED
DEEHRART e

? E% °

E%%ﬁz AREEREESRENZELE

RIEHZ m%ﬂfﬁﬁﬁm Hepal o bk
m&%%%** F2BE - EHEZHEBEAR
BERFEEAE  IEAERANEABERE
B2 AREBEEZHEAERR56% -

BEREE

RIEEHEE R - 20068 A I E A A
ATRIAREE T 48,239,02010 &% » EILFE
REEE2005F6A30R 2B BREBEH L
MmEERs 2 A BEEEHARKET7 65ELE
NEREHEE gz IEENERHRET
R BRRBEAOABARE349EE T (200445 ¢ A
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14.

15.

Specific payables

Specific payables comprise Rmb81 million (2004: Rmb81 million),
loaned by TMEB to one of the Company’s subsidiary and Rmb10
million (2004: Rmb10 million)is loaned by other authorities within
the Tianjin Municipal Government. The loans were granted for the
construction of the Group’s Ji Zhuang Zi sewage water recycling
plant. These loans are interest free and the method and date of
repayment will only be determined after the completion of the said
plants.

Trade and other payables

Dividend payable (Note(i)) FERN AR (aFHE()
Payable for purchase of fixed assets FENEEREEEAE
Construction costs payable JET BERR AN AN
Advances from customers TRHBR TR

Accrued expenses EiRE R

Trade payables (Note(ii) FERTBRFR (FE#E(ii)
Others Al

Total CEn

Notes:

(i)  The balance as at 30th June 2005 principally represents the 2004 dividend for
A share shareholders which has been paid out subsequent to period end.

(i)  The aging of trade payable as at 30th June 2005 is within one year.

14. BEIEEMNSR

HEEEMNREBREAQBZ FRARKRKET
HEREB2EEAES  HF ARBHYH
81,000,0007T (20044 : A R % 81,000,000
L) HBCZEHENZKOARE1,0008 T
(20045 : AR¥1,00087T) A% TAFNKRK
ETMTMBRAEMISIIES - ARLETISKE
FAIRER UEEBEENFEESEREZ
AREAPARTHE  WREEAEIEH XK
BAMBRAHERBEMAE -

15. AR R E b B AR

30th June 31st December

2005 2004
2005 £ 2004 £
6 A430H 12A31H
100,739 1,830
53,892 55,000
50,886 97,720
43,499 52,700
6,391 7,882
2,485 8,408
86,506 31,969
344,398 255,509

2E

(i) 2005 6A30B ZHEEZRHMARIZTHARKR
Z2004F B A - X ERFIE R EIE AT -

(i) PA200546 A30H K E BRFBREROTE — FF AR ©
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16. Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after crediting and charging the following:

Crediting:
Rental
Interest income

Charging:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Staff costs

Raw materials and consumables used
Repair and maintenance expenses
Transportation

Advertising costs

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

17. Finance costs

Interest on bank loans and
convertible bonds
Less: Capitalised interest

Fair value loss on convertible bonds
Others
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HA
RSA
FBHA

g
e R
8 TR

16.

RFF B K DB #E

HERREER
BB

EEE
BEEEEERER

RITER R AT H R ESFS

B ERTIRERNMERE

AERESAAEEEMRBLR
HAt

17.

mE R
KERMNBFARMBRTYIER -
For the six months ended
30th June 30th June
2005 2004
BZ6 A30HIANEAR
2005 £ 2004 5
5,896 —
5,561 466
32,515 28,938
22,983 18,064
5,807 2,336
3,441 3,032
1,168 1,888
493 1,255
— 3,300
2 B B AR
For the six months ended
30th June 30th June
2005 2004
BZ6 A30HIANEAR
2005 £ 2004 5
35,554 21,162
(14,329) (12,904)
21,225 8,258
16,579 —
5,559 —
43,363 8,258



18. Income tax expense

19.

20.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group has no
assessable profits in Hong Kong (2004: Nil). PRC income tax has
been charged at 33% (2004: 33%) on the assessable profits of the
Group.

Tax charge comprises:

Current PRC income tax REFR EH TS
Deferred income tax TEIEFI IR
Dividend

No dividend was proposed by the Board of Directors of the Company
(“Directors”) for the six months ended 30th June 2005 (2004: nil).

Earnings per share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to shareholders of Rmb82,681,000 (2004:
Rmb144,138,000) and 1,330,000,000 shares (2004: 1,330,000,000
shares) in issue during the period.

As 69% of bonds were redeemed subsequent to period end, no
diluted earnings per share was calculated.

18.

19.

20.

Bi1R

HRARAER B EERTFE - I RIE
& B RS TS (20044 « &) - FiIE AT
EATER  DIRAEBMERERTFEZ33%
(20044 : 33%) st &

M HEE
For the six months ended
30th June 30th June
2005 2004
BEZ6 A30HIAEA
2005 F 2004 £
48,977 69,518
(5,471) —
43,506 69,518
B E

RAREEENEE2005F6 A30H 1E/~E A
BRI R iR R R EE IR B (20044 - £E) o

BRER

FHRAMBRERNBHBERELRNARE
82,681,0007T (20044 : A R#144,138,000
J0) WA K HI R B % 97 B 5 1,330,000,0008%
(20044 : 1,330,000,0000%) 5+ & o

R B R E ABESBE T 69% EEH
ARAE - E A T R 3% -
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21. Capital commitments 21. EXRELE

Contracted but not Authorised but not
Amount invested provided for contracted for

REH EEAREE ERERELR
30th June 30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2005 2005 2004 2005 2004
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
BEz Bz Bz BE Bz
20055 200545 20045 20055 20044

6A30H.E  6A30HL  12A31HL  6A30AL  12A31AL
AEKBEL AREBERT AREBET AREKEET ARKEETL

Water processing plants in: AKEEREER
- Xian Yang Lu Rl 584 56 70 561 589
-Ji Zhuang Zi ik 651 16 19 387 401
- Bei Cang -t 116 160 98 90 164
- Chi Bi —hE 17 1 9 77 5
- Bao Ying —EE — — - 65 —
- Qu Jing —fhiE — — — 108 —
Zhong Shui K — — — 80 5
Office building NS — — 39 — 20
Others Efth 19 — — 31 26
1,387 233 235 1,399 1,210
Furthermore, the Directors approved the following investment b - EURIFEARARGERTSERBATR
projects in previous periods which remain uninvested at 30th June EIEE  RAHPUEZD
2005:
Estimated
investment
amount
BRARESHE
Rmb’ million
AREEET

Construction of a sewage water processing plant
KERR—FTKEER 52
Establishment of two joint ventures to
operate water related business
KRERIMRAERQA 252

304
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22. Related party transactions 22. BEXS

The related parties of the Company and its subsidiaries that had HEARAREFRARIETRG ZAERNT

transactions with the Company and its subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of related parties Nature of relationship

BELTER BEARRQRE

TSC State -owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB

BEk ] RIXTRBEREZHELENNF

Tianjin Sewage Management Bureau State -owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB

No.8 Management Office FAEHHEEEBE bR T

REMBIKEERRS N\FKEET

Tianjin Sewage Engineering Company State -owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB

RAEMHKIEAR RXTRBEEZHELERNA

TMICL Ultimate holding company, under the supervisory control of TMEB

RAETIN KRB 2 REERA T

Tianjin Road & Bridge Management Bureau State -owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB

REMERBREER RAXmBBEEZHELERAF

Tianjin Municipal Engineering Design Research Institute ~ State -owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB

REBMME TIZRET R RXTRBEEZHELERNA

Scott Willson (Tianjin) Consultancy Company Company of Tianjin Municipal Investment Co., Ltd

BE(RR) IRERNERAA AR RERCR 2 Bt 2 2 F)

State-owned enterprises* Related parties of the Company

BAME KRB ZEERT]

* The Company is a state-owned enterprise. In accordance with the HKAS 24, * KRRREERE - REEREZEE S AR
“Related Party Disclosure”, state-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries, F245 (BEHBRE)  RRZEIZERRROBR
other than entities under the Group, directly or indirectly controlled by the RAVZFRAF I B 5 g BT )
PRC government are also defined as related parties of the Company and its ZEHMBACEMEFARGRERER/EADAR
subsidiaries. HFRrlz@Ers -
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The majority of the business activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries are conducted with state-owned enterprises. For the
purpose of the related party transactions disclosure in accordance
with HKAS 24, the Company and its subsidiaries have established
procedures to identify, to the extent possible, the ownership
structures. Nevertheless, management believes that all material
related party balances and transactions have been adequately
disclosed.

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in the
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements, the
following is a summary of significant related party transactions
entered into in the ordinary course of the business between the
Company and its subsidiaries and their related parties during the
period and balances arising from related party transactions at the
end of the period.

(a) Related party balances

Included in the unaudited condensed consolidated balance
sheet, the balances with state-owned enterprises are as follows:

Current assets RBEE
Deposit with a non-bank RN FEERTT
financial institution DRI &
Cash and bank balances RITIFRK
Non-current liabilities REAE
Long-term bank borrowings REMER
Current liabilities REBEME
Other payables H R ARAR
Short-term bank borrowings RHIER
Current portion of long-term —FEREH
bank borrowings Z RHER
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RARARREFRARIZ T EBELRDHEEEE
EETZ - BREBEBEGFTERIE 2457 ETT
BT REZBN AR REFARDER
REEREE CRRA RN EFEHERES
REALE - AMEEEHEMBEEARELZ
BB B ML WD HKE -

BRTEARKETERGEEPHRE LMD
SURZ BB T BN  TXEMA T ARR RE
FRAREAEBM I EARELEZBBIFTEHE
BEETZERBYR ORI INEARBB IS
EEZ R -

(a) BB Z R

ERAREEAGRGaTHEEABR
B BEAMEZHRRBEITRAR

30th June 31st December

2005 2004

Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
A 2005 F 7 2004 F

6 H30H 12A31H
AR BEET AR EFET
— 400

924 895

625 605

102 151

60 10

55 50



(b) Related party transactions

(o)

Revenue received from TSC:

- From sewage water processing
services (Note 1(a))

- From construction of sewage
water processing plants (Note 1(b))

Operating lease rental in respect of
office premises due to TMICL
(ceased during 2004)

Amount payable for sewage water
processing plants
construction costs to other related contractors
-Tianjin Sewage Management Bureau No.8
Management Office
-Tianjin Sewage Engineering Company

State-owned enterprises

Purchase of fixed assets

Purchase of construction materials
Purchase of raw materials and accessories
Payment for plants construction
Drawdown of short-term bank borrowings
Drawdown of long-term bank borrowings
Interest expenses

Key management compensation

(b) B ZBAER

Six months ended 30th June

2005 2004
In Rmb’ million In Rmb’ million
BZE6HA3081~MAA
20054 20044
AR HET AREHET
PR BIEUS 2 WA
—EKEIE R EWA
(it# 1(a) 137 222
— SRR IR R AR B URA
(% 1(b)) 92 69
TR EHH
—-RAEHEEMA
(52 2004 FAR L) — 1
JE S < R B SR S
ST BR IR R RR A AN
—FEMHOKERRER
FENBEKEHFT 1 —
— R EMBIKTIEAA] 1 —
2 —
BEECEMB IR SBLERE
REBETEE 2 2
HETREME 3 _
BREE R R R B 1 19 15
SNIRE 67 128
EEEHER 50 —
EERIER 50 —
B 19 19

(c) BOEEERM

For the six months ended

30th June 30th June
2005 2004

HZ6A30HILAAEAR
2005 £ 2004 5

Salaries and other short-term TENFEEETER

employee benefits 1,556 1,462
Retirement benefits BEEg e 1E 53 37
Other long-term benefits H b R EAE N 163 131
Total &t 1,772 1,630

ARAXBRROERATDVO-_ZESZTIFEHHRE

929
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23. Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including
the effects of credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rates

risk.

(a) Financial risk factors

(b)

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amount of cash and bank and trade
receivables represented the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk. Cash is placed with reputable banks in the
PRC. Majority of the Group’s trade receivables relate to
provision of services to a related party. The Group
performs ongoing credit evaluations of the customers’
financial condition.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but
borrowed substantial amount of short-term and long-term
loans from banks at fixed and floating rates. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets including
cash and bank, trade, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments; and financial liabilities including trade payables,
short-term borrowings, other payables and accruals,
approximate their fair value due to their short maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate
their fair value. The fair value is estimated by discounted cash
flows using a discount rate based upon the borrowing rate
which the directors of the Company expect would be available
to the Group at the balance sheet date.

23. AEE

SEzEBEHTESEERAR
% RERRMERRE—

(a)
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FRREKEZER - RITHEREFRRF
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WOB 5 8RR B M B B 77 2 1R AR T W
A o REBFERTI R HER 2%
SR o

ReRENEFMIEBLABERR

AEBYBAESEEE  BHEABEEM
FENEEUS 2 RIEHIERITIER - 7/ X[,
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ERRESMEMENK  FHEREER - £
MEERBEAREHREE - FER
HEERINEARER-

EREE AR EBERL - AREBEEHER
RZAERUNARREESHHREEEE
BERBBSERZMERRE -



24,

25.

26.

Significant event

Subsequent to period end, during August 2005, certain of the bond
holders exercised their option to redeem their share of the convertible
bonds issued by the Company, in accordance with the term of the
issuance (Note 13).

Ultimate holding company

As at 30th June 2005, the Directors regard TMICL as the ultimate
holding company.

Approval of interim financial report

The condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30th June 2005 was approved by the Directors on 30th August
2005.

24,

25.

26.

EXER
REARBIERABEFEEHBERTE

RZBRAME  RRAEBREEZAHEFEA
M2005F8A7T(E T ERIEH#E FRMWE13) -

REERAT

HZE2005F6A30H1 ARABEERAEKX
EMRAHESEIEBR AT -

B BRZRERE

NEEREEA T EIE B W 20058 A30H & A A
NAEEESEED -
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IX. Supplementary Information provided

by

Management

(2) The analysis on the items in the accounts with changes

above and including 30%, and accounting for and

including 5% of total assets at the balance sheet date or

above and including 10% of total profit during the

repo

2005 2004

20055 20045

6H30H 12A31H

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

ARETFT ARBFT

Prepayments to suppliers  TB{-BR 5K 1,715 118,453
Short-term loans REIER 210,000 115,000
Dividend payable FER IR FI 100,739 1,830
Financial expense HHER 21,289 7,844

Notes:

1.
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rting period.

30th June 31st December

The decrease in prepayments to suppliers was attributable to an advance
payment made in 2004, which represented the advance payment made by
the Company to purchase an office building in the city of Tianjin from the
Wingfa Group. In 2005, on this basis, the Company withdraw an unpaid
amount of approximately Rmb41 million, being payment for purchasing
the office building, with a total purchasing cost of approximately Rmb156
million. All these amounts after used will be transferred to fixed assets in the
current year.

Short-term loans for the period increased by Rmb95 million as increased
borrowings were used as the Company’s current capital.

The increase in dividends payable for the period represented the dividends
for 2004 payable to shareholders of A shares. The dividends were paid in
July, 2005.

The increase in financial expense for the period was attributable to an increase
of Rmb14.04 million in interest expense in respect of convertible bonds for
the period as convertible corporate bonds were not issued in the same period
last year.

t ’
5%)
18

W EEEBRRAEMEREH

(Z) B BRREBESHIEEE30% (530%) LA

BEAATRRBEELTE% (S
HMEHREHLEE10% (E10%) UL £
BoH e

Difference and change

in amounts and range Notes
Amounts %
ZRSHIERRE B
3] %
Rmb’000
ARETT
-116,738 -98.55 1
95,000 82.61 2
98,909 5,404.86 3
13,445 171.4 4
AERE

FERBRZAR D R AN2004FEFENBREHRALRD
RIBEEREMEREE B ABAMNNES
K o 20064F - FEMERM FARFRRT RHBE
RHARKEA,1008B 7T - BIZ2EKARETHARE
156 WAFEFRAE —HEARTEEE -

AEAREHAE R A R#595,000F L - =2 21E
MERARARRRBESHEE -

ZNHR S N0 RE AR E B R MR XA B ARIRE /Y
04FREF - B FIE 7 2005F 7 A H LA+ -

AEMBERENEZERAFRB M AZITIE
BARMES - MAEENATEENEXHARE
14,040F JLATER ©



X. Purchase, Sell or Redemption of the
Company'’s listed securities

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase or sell or redeem any
of the listed securities of the Company during the reporting period.

XI. Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
the independent non-executive Directors Messrs Ko Poming, Wang
Xiangfei and Gao Zongze. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management of the Group the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed with the management of the Group
the auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters including
the review of the unaudited Interim Report prepared under HK GAAP.

XIl. Code on Corporate Governance Practices

None of the Directors is aware of any information that would reasonably
indicate that the Company is not or was not, for any part of the reporting
period, in compliance with the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

XIIl. Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers

During the reporting period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding the securities transactions by the Directors on the terms exactly
the same as the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. The Company, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors and Supervisors, confirmed that all the Directors and Supervisors
have complied with its code of conduct regarding the securities
transactions by the Directors.

T REUBEOF2FZLS
H &

ARARREMBARLERARERNANBEOAHEER
RARHEA LTRSS

+—- BHER

mep

ARAEZEZBE ([EZZEE)RERESEH
MEMTEESEREL  TAREERSTES
HFHK -  BERZEECHEEBERMAKREMRMN

SRFRAIRITE - YO I wmESL - AEEERY
BKEREFE  EREHREEESRABER
REBEFNALFERE -

EEMENBRTNASENRBRAARREHE
AHmEREMBRARGET EHRAMEI40Z
ERTHRTRIMBRE -

T LtFRTANESEESH
XamilETA

EAREHAN  ARACEMEFT AR HHIRE
SPRI ERGRE EWAR RS0 EMBEITANES
EHXSRETAMRENRERSTE2MAR - AR
FEHMAEERESFLERNER - XHERME
EEREFHCETARANEZSESRZNEE
SPRI
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XIV. Documents Available for Inspection

Interim report for the six months ended 30th June 2005 signed by
the Chairman;

Statement of accounts, undersigned and sealed by the legal
representative, the officer in charge of the accounting work (Chief
Financial Accountant) and the officer in charge of the accounting
department of the Company;

Auditors’ independent review report on the accounts of the Company
prepared under HK GAAP for the six months ended 30th June 2005
undersigned by the certified public accountants;

Original copies of documents and announcements of the Company
which were publicly disclosed on newspapers and magazines
specified by CSRC during the period covered by this report; and

Interim report for the six months ended 30th June 2005 as published
on the website operated by Hong Kong Stock Exchange (available
on or before 14th September 2005).

By order of the Board
Ma Baiyu
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC

30th August 2005
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